
 

 

      Memorandum 
 

Monroe County Water Authority 

 
To:  Board Members Date:     February 26, 2026 
 
From:      Nicholas Noce, Executive Director   
 
Subject: Regular Board Meeting – Thursday, March 5, 2026 @ 9:00 a.m. 
 Board Room, 475 Norris Drive 
 
 

AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
 1. Personnel Items (Memorandums enclosed):  
 

• Provisional Appointment of Brendan Ringer. to the title of Utility Stakeout Technician 
– Water Authority in the Facilities, Fleet and Operations.  Mr. Ringer recently was a 
Locator for Bermex, Inc.  See enclosed memorandum from Stephen Trotta. 

 

• Provisional Appointment of Timothy Donk to the title of Construction Inspector in the 
Engineering Department.  Mr. Donk most recently has been employed by Victor 
Excavating as a Superintendent.   See enclosed memorandum from Stephen Savage. 
 

•  Provisional Promotional Appointment of Jasen Hillebrant to the title of Construction 
Inspector.  Mr. Hillebrant has been with the Authority for three plus years and has a 
wealth of knowledge and experience.  See enclosed memorandum from Stephen 
Savage. 
 

 
2. There is an item on the agenda to authorize the purchase of a 2026 Clark S25 Forklift 

with Full Cab. 
 

3. There is an item on the agenda to authorize the use of Monroe County Contract with 
Regional International for the purchase of parts and supplies for the repair and 
maintenance of the Authority’s International dump and crew trucks. 

 
4. There is an item on the agenda to authorize the purchase of industrial and 

commercial supplies and equipment from MSC Industrial Supply Company (MSC) 
for other items not available through the New York State Office of General Services 
(NYSOGS) contract. These items will be purchased under our blanket purchase 
order procedures for an estimated total cost of $5,000 for the term ending 
December 31, 2026. Although this amount is less than the threshold requiring 
Board approval, the total amount combined with the $12,000 purchase order with 
MSC for items included on the NYSOGS contract previously authorized by the Board 
in May 2023 through Resolution #23-094 exceeds $15,000.   
 

5. There is an item on the agenda to authorize the purchase of products for 
microbiological testing from IDEXX Distribution, Inc. (IDEXX). The Authority 
standardized on the use of these products from IDEXX in September 2015, which 
was authorized by the Board through Resolution #15-183. The standardization was 
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last reviewed and reaffirmed in November 2024. IDEXX Distribution Inc., a wholly 
owned subsidiary of IDEXX Laboratories, Inc. and the sole authorized supplier in 
the United States, proposed unit pricing that is valid through March 2028. A 
commodity purchase order will be utilized for the purchase of products, to be 
ordered as needed, at the unit prices proposed for an estimated amount up to 
$160,000 for a term not to exceed two years, beginning April 1, 2026 through March 
31, 2028. 
 

6. There is an item on the agenda to award a contract for the Twin Hills BPS Generator 
Connection project. This contract includes modifications to the electrical system 
and installation of an automatic transfer switch at the Twin Hills Booster Pumping 
Station (BPS) in the Town of Parma, to connect an emergency electrical generator 
that will be installed at the BPS. The generator is being repurposed and relocated 
from the Authority’s North Road BPS. A new generator is being installed at the 
North Road BPS under the Genesee County Phase 2 Water Supply project. 
Although two bids were received, only one bid was determined to be responsive. 
Our recommendation is to award this contract to Concord Electric Corporation as 
the low, responsible, responsive bid in the amount of $282,000. 
 

7. There is an item on the agenda to award a contract for the 2026 Tank Rehabilitation 
Program project in the towns of Bergen and Stafford.  The project involves repairing 
and recoating the 1.25-million-gallon Temperance Hill East Tank in the town of 
Stafford and recoating the exterior roof on the 2.0-million-gallon Buffalo Road Tank 
in the town of Bergen. There were three bids received. Our recommendation is to 
award this work to Erie Painting & Maintenance, Inc. in the bid amount of 
$2,287,654.32. 
 

 
 

2026 Tank Rehabilitation Program 

$3,500,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$2,000,000 

~ 
~ 
0 
C 

$1 ,500,000 

$1 ,000,000 

$500,000 

$0 
Erie Painting and Maintenance Inc. Amstar of Western New York, Inc. 

Bid Amount $2,287,654.32 $3,288,000.00 
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8. In December 2025, the Board was notified of an Emergency Purchase Order (PO) 
for $249,400 to be issued to J. Fletcher Creamer & Son, Inc. for the Oatka Creek 
Crossing Pipe Lining in the Town of Wheatland.   
 
The existing 8” cast iron water main running underneath Oatka Creek along 
Wheatland Center Road in the town of Wheatland developed a leak near the center 
of the approximately 110’ wide creek.  Due to the location of the leak, a repair would 
be extremely difficult if not impossible.   
 
Engineering investigated multiple options for replacing the entire pipeline crossing 
the creek.  Due to the existence of gypsum mines in the area, NYSDEC indicated they 
would not permit replacing the water main using the horizontal directional drill 
method of installing pipe underneath the creek.  Installation by open-cut was also 
investigated, but similar concerns with the gypsum mines exist along with having 
to divert a large amount of flowing water in order to perform the installation.     
     
Further investigation included various lining products to be installed within the 
existing water main to prevent disturbance to the creek.  Primus Line, which is a 
flexible structural pipe able to be pulled into the existing water main, even with 
water intrusion, offered the most practical and cost-effective solution to repair the 
existing crossing.  Once installed, the liner is able to act as a new pipe and prevent 
the need for future repairs underneath the creek.   
 
The work was completed by J. Fletcher Creamer & Sons, Inc. the week of February 
16 and with the assistance of the Operations Department, the water main was 
placed back in service.     
 

9. There is an item on the agenda to authorize an amendment to the Service Line 
Material Inventory Services project with Arcadis of New York, Inc. (Arcadis) for 
2026.  Under this Amendment, Arcadis will provide the following services: 
 
• Construction Administration and Inspection Services for the Service Line 

Inventory Project.  The Water Authority plans to use its Vacuum Excavation 
Contractor to excavate and identify approximately 3,000 water services in 2026.  
The Vacuum Excavation Contractor may use two full time crews for the majority 
of the construction season to meet the project goals.   

• Construction Administration and inspection services for the Lead and 
Galvanized Service Replacement Contract to replace of any public lead and 
galvanized water services.  It is anticipated that the Contractor may replace 
approximately 350 water services under this contract.     

• Ongoing support for inventory improvements and updates following modeling 
work, field work, and review of Department of Health updates.  These efforts 
will also include updates to inventory policies and strategies, predictive model 
updates, validation lists, and QA/QC of the annual inventory prior to MCWA 
submitting the inventory to NYSDOH in October 2026.    
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10. Authorize use of the New York State OGS Contract, Group #77201, Award #23150, 
Contract #PT68869, to enter into an agreement with Technical Systems Group Inc 
for Preventative Maintenance and Service Contract for eight (8) Vehicles 
Slide Gates and Operators for an estimated total cost of $75,000.  

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

11. The Authority's Audit Committee met on March 3, 2026, and with their 
recommendation there are resolutions for the following: 

 

• Approval of the 2025 Annual Financial Statements. 
 

• Approval of the 2025 Annual Investment Audit. 
 

• Approval of the 2025 Annual Investment Report. 
 

• Approval of the Annual Statement of Investment Policy. 
 

• Approval of Management's Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal 
Control Structure and Procedures. 

 
 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 

12.  The Authority's Governance Committee met on March 3, 2026, and with their 
recommendation for approval, there will be resolutions for the following: 

 

• Re-adoption of the Water Authority's Mission Statement. 
 

• Acceptance of the Report on 2025 Performance Measures. 
 

• Adoption of Performance Measurements for 2026. 
 

14. There is an item on the agenda to change the April Regular and Annual Board 
Meetings to April 16, 2016. 

 
14.   There is an item on the agenda to approve a Memorandum of Agreement 

between the Authority and CSEA (the Union) to add the Juneteenth holiday to 
the Union Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA). 

 
15. The Authority's Standard Procurement Compliance Resolution. 

 
 

 
 
 

In Board Folders for Review: 
 
 

 
 Routine Monthly Informational Reports and/or Updates 
 RFP/Q for Safety Training and Compliance 
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 Emergency Purchase Order for Construction Stone 
 Emergency Purchase Order for Asphalt Materials 

 
 
 
 
 

There may be additional items presented for discussion and/or notification. 
 
 

NN/dlh 
Enclosures 
 
 

cc:  Executive Staff 
 
 



~ Monroe County Water Authority 

To: Nicholas Noce, Executive Director 

From: Stephen Trotta, Director of Operations 

Subject: Recommendation to Hire 

Memorandum 

Date: February 24, 2026 

Copies: D. Hendrickson 

I would like to recommend the provisional appointment of Brendan Ringer to the 
position of Utility Stakeout Technician - Water Authority in the Facilities, Fleet and 
Operations Department. 

Brendan was interviewed by Mike Quattrone, Mike Sullivan and myself and was 
found to be very well suited for this position. Brendan has recently been employed as 
a locator with Bermex. 

The position will be at an hourly rate of $34.15. 

Mr. Ringer's appointment will be effective March 23, 2026. 

~ proved: 2- - 2lo -Zv 

Directi?:ls 
Date 

(~ pproved: 2✓zr;.r2(i 
Deputy Executive Director Date 

(yis )Approved: 11 JJ, 16l- 1---(n /u. 
Executive Director Date 

Board Resolution: 



~ Monroe County Water Authority 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Nicholas Noce, Executive Director 

Stephen M. Savage, PE L.~ 
Director of Engineering fJ r 

Recommendation to Hire 
Construction Inspector 

Memorandum 

Date: February 25, 2026 

Copies: D. Hendrickson 
L. Magguilli 

I recommend the appointment of Timothy Donk to the position of Construction Inspector in the 
Engineering Department to be effective April 6, 2026. 

Mr. Donk will be filling a current vacancy in the Engineering Department's Construction Section. 
He interviewed very well and has several years of relevant experience that make him a good fit for 
this position. 

The position will be at an hourly rate of $3 5 .21. 

~Approved: 
Executive Director Date 

(Dis )Approved: 

.~)Approved: 

Board Resolution: -------- -



~ Monroe County Water Authority 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Nicholas Noce, Executive Director 

Stephen M. Savage, PE btJ 
Director of Engineering 

Recommendation for promotion 
Construction Inspector 

Memorandum 

Date: February 27, 2026 

Copies: D. Hendrickson 
J. Witkowski 

I respectfully request you obtain the Board's approval to provisionally promote Jasen Hillebrant to 
Construction Inspector in the Engineering Department to be effective Monday, March 9, 2026. 

Mr. Hillebrant has been in the Construction Section of the Engineering Department since he was 
hired in August 2022. He came to the Water Authority with similar, related experience. He has 
done an excellent job in his current role as an Assistant Construction Inspector. It is my 
recommendation that he be promoted at this time. 

The position will be at an hourly rate of $36.69. 

~pproved: 
D~ fE,VL .b'i= ~ ngmeenng Date 

Executive Director Date 

Board Resolution: - ---- ----



Monroe County Water Authority Memorandum 

To: Steve Trotta Date: 02/23/2026 

From: Laurel Neff File: WA012603 

Subject: Recommendation for Bid Award Copies: 
March 5, 2026 Board Meeting 
One (1) New 2026 Forklift 

Two bids were received on February 18, 2026, for One (1) New 2026 Forklift. The low 
responsive, responsible bidder is Insley-McEntee Equipment Company, Inc. in the amount 
of$38,659.75. 

A bid was also received from Prolift, Inc. for $41,490.64. Bid packages were sent to 13 
vendors. 

I recommend that the bid be awarded to the low responsive, responsible bidder. 

/ln 
Attachment: Bid Tabulation 

~ proved by 
Date 

~ pprovedby 

/ 
(Dis)Approved by 

Executive Director Date 

(Dis )Approved by 
Recording Secretary /Board Date 



February 20, 2026 

Req 10358 

It~~ Qty 
No 
1 1 New 2026 Forklift 

Monroe County Water Authority 
MCWA 012603 - One (1) New 2026 Forklift 

(;lj 

Description INS).EY MC-EN'tE:E 
E-QµIPr,tENT 

COMl!ANY, INC. 
$38,659.75 

(2~ 
PROUE"!;, iNC. 

$41,490.64 



~ Monroe County Water Authority 

To: 

From: 

Chris LaManna, P.E., Director of Production and Transmission 
Laurie Neff, Purchasing Agent 

Roy Cleveland, Supervisor of Engineering Support <ti{) 
Subject: March 5, 2026 Board Meeting - Agenda Item 

Twin Hills BPS Generator Connection 

Memorandum 

Date: February 24, 2026 

File: 25-S06 #3 

Copies: N. Nace 
L. Magguilli 
D. Hendrickson 
M. Cavallaro 

Attached are the results of the bid opening on February 12, 2026, for the above project. The contract 
involves the modifications to the electrical system and installation of an automatic transfer switch at 
Twin Hills BPS, in the Town of Parma. One responsive bid was received in the amount of $282,000.00 
from Concord Electric Corporation. The Engineer's estimate was $165,000.00. A bid tabulation sheet is 
attached. A second bid was received in the amount of $243,000.00 from Hewitt Young Electric, LLC; 
however, it was determined to be non-responsive because the complete set of bid documents was not 
submitted. 

Our staff has conducted a thorough review of the bid package and qualifications. Based on Concord 
Electric Corporation's qualifications and past performance with the Authority, it is my recommendation 
that the Board authorize the Executive Director to award this contract to the lowest responsive, 
responsible bidder, Concord Electric Corporation, for the amount of $282,000.00. 

~pproved by: ~ z/zi/2.to 
Date 

(P~pproved by: ~/JSl:1eo 
Date 

(Dis) Approved by: 

s11,;:rxiri=- Date 

/ )-/2-~/2~ I 

(Dis] Approved by: 
/ Executive Director Date 

Attachments: Bid Tabulation Sheet 



Twin Hills BPS Generator Connection 

I certify that this tabulation is a true representation of bids received 

on February 12, 2026 at 10:30 a.m. for this project. 

By: ?<.-r 1 Lu 

Date: 0 2 - Z. 4 · 202.'-

Item 

No. Description 

1 Twin Hills BPS Generator Connection 

Total Bid Price 

Estimated 

Quantity Unit 

1 LS 

Engineers 

Estimate 

Unit 

Price Amount 

$ 165,000.00 $ 165,000.00 

$165,000.00 

$ 

Eng. No.: 25-S06 

Auth. No.: 251-600 

Bid Opening: February 12, 2026 

Concord Electric Corporation 

305 Pinewood Drive, Suite 4 

Rochester NY, 14606 

(585) 436-6870 

Unit 

Price Amount 

282,000.00 $ 282,000.00 

$282,000.00 



~ Monroe County Water Authority 

To : 

From: 

Subject: 

Nicholas Nace, Executive Director 
Laurel Neff, Purchasing 

~ 
Stephen M. Savage, P.E., Director of Engineering 

March 5, 2026 Board Meeting - Agenda Item 
2026 Tank Rehabilitation Program 
Towns of Bergen and Stafford 

Memorandum 

Date: February 18, 2026 

File : 25-019, #3 

Copies: D. Hendrickson 
T. Stevens, P.E. 
J. Sullivan 

Attached are the results of the bid opening on February 17, 2026 for the above project. The project involves 
repairing and recoating the 1.25-million-gallon Temperance Hill East Tank in the town of Stafford and recoating 
the exterior roof on the 2.0-million-gallon Buffalo Road Tank in the town of Bergen. Three contractors 
submitted bids ranging from $2,038,400 to $3,288,000; the Engineer's estimate was $1,600,000. A bid 
tabulation sheet is attached. 

Brave Industrial Paint LLC submitted an incomplete Bid package as required in Section 1, Article 7 and Article 
15 of the Bid Documents and are therefore non-responsive. 

Erie Painting & Maintenance, Inc. submitted the lowest responsive bid of $2,287,654.32. Staff has conducted 
a thorough review of the bid package including experience; financial status, references, and other related items 
as required, indicating that Erie Painting & Maintenance, Inc. is capable of completing the work. 

Based on the staff review of Erie Painting & Maintenance, Inc. qualifications, it is my recommendation that 
the Board authorize the Executive Director to award this contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder; 
Erie Painting & Maintenance, Inc. for the amount of $2,287,654.32. 

(.(;)'Is) Approved by: 
Date 

~ Approved by: 
Date 

~ roved by 
Executive Director Date 

Attachments: Bid Tabulation Sheet 



I certify that this tabulation is a true 
representation of bids received on 
Febru~ l D:00 a,m, for this project 

By• It- 2&:= 
2LnLz~ Dal.I!; 

J t 

Item 
No. Dc,;crlotlou 

1.1 Tcmoerancc Hill EastTanl< Madllicatlans 
1.2 ·rem-ocrancc HUI EastT,mk Interior Cleanln• and Coatin2 
1.3 Temocrance Hill East Tank i::xtcrlor Clcanlno and Coatfn~ 
1.4 Temocrance 11111 F.as t Tank Ca thodic ProtecUon 
1.5 Buffalo Ro,id Tank.Exterior Roof Clean.in~ and Ovcrcoatlne 

40.0 Temncrance Hill East Tank O,looin~ and Grind.in• 
41 ,0 Tcmncrancc Hill East To nk Deen Pit Weld Reooir 
42.0 Temperance HIii East Tan k Sea m Weld Repair 
43.0 Temperance Hill East Tank Interior Pi t Filline 
44.0 Tcmocrance Hill East Tank Interior C:.1ulklne 
45.0 Buffalo Road Tank - Interior Coatlnl! Holdav l!eoalrs Up ma Hcl•ht nf20 fee t 
46.0 Buffa lo Road Tank - Interior Coatin• Hoidav Repairs at a Hcieht Grea ter Than 20 feet 

Total 

Bid In formalities: ~rie Painting did not intial crossed out changes to Bid Item No. 1,2 

Estimated 
nua.oatv Unit 

100 LS 
1 00 LS 

1.00 LS 
1.00 LS 
1.00 LS 

10.0ll HR 
60.00 Hll 

100.00 LF 
5.00 GALLON 

50.00 EA 
20.00 HR. 
10.00 HR 

2026 Tank Rehabilitation Progran1 

Erie Painting and Maintenance Inc. 
Engineers 999 Rein Road 
Estimate Cheektowaga, NY 14225 

(716) 634-6746 
Unit Unit 
Price Amount Price Amount 

$ 284,600.00 $ 284,600.00 $ 310,000.00 $ 310,000.00 
$ 450,000.00 $ 450.000.00 $ 922,254.32 $ 92.2.254.32 
$ 680,000.00 $ 680,000.00 $ 730,000.00 $ 730,000.00 
$ 50,000.00 $ 50,000.00 $ 65 000.00 $ 65,000.00 
$ 95,000.00 .$ 95,000.00 $ 220 000.00 $ 220.000.00 
$ 110.00 $ 44-00.00 $ 110.00 s 4,400.00 
$ 110.00 $ 6.600.00 s 110.00 $ 6,600.00 
$ 100.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 100.00 s 10,000.00 
$ 180.00 $ 900.00 $ 180.00 s 900 00 
$ 30.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 30.00 $ 1,500.00 
$ 500.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 500.00 $ 10,000.00 
$ 700.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 700.00 $ 7,000.00 

$'1 ,600,000.0Q $2,28 7,654.32 

Low Bidddcr 

Eng. Noe 25-019 
Auth No, 164-300 

Anlstar of Western New York. Inc. 
825 Rein Road 

Cheektowaga, NY 14225 
(716) 204--9755 

Unit 
Price. Amount 

$ 625,000.00 $ 625,000.00 
s 950.000.00 s 950,000.00 
$ 1,510,100.00 s 1,510,100.00 
$ 58.000.00 $ 58,000.00 
$ 82,000.00 $ 82,000.00 
$ 200.00 $ 8 000.00 
s 200.00 $ 12,000.00 
$ 150.00 s 15,000.00 
$ 180.00 $ 900.00 
s 60.00 s 3,000.00 
$ 700.00 s l-4,000,00 
s 1,000.00 s 10,000.00 

S3;288,000,00 

2nd Low Hidddcr 



Technical Systems Group Inc. Phone: 585-467-2390 

1799 N. Clinton Ave, Rochester, NY 14621 www.tsgsecurity.com 

February 10, 2026 TSG Proposal#: M13731 

Julie Ruckdeschel 
Monroe County Water Authority 
475 Norris Drive 
Rochester, NY 14610 

RE: Preventative Maintenance and Service Contract for eight (8) MCWA vehicle slide gates 
and operators 

This proposal is valid for 30 days from the date shown above. 

Dear Julie, 

Thank you for requesting Technical Systems Group's proposal for semi-annual preventative 
maintenance, service calls and repairs . 

Our proposal is based on our site review and the scope of work described below. 

The pricing included in this proposal is based on Technical Systems Group's New York State 
OGS Intelligent Facility & Security Systems and Solutions Contract #PT68869 (Group 77201, 
Award 23150) 

Scope of Work - Preventative Maintenance 

• Preventive Maintenance to include. 

1. Inspect, adjust, and lubricate each gate operator and gate rollers as required. 

2. Inspect, adjust, and lubricate chain, drive sprockets and idlers, Gear box oil, level and 
its quality, Limit switches and their adjustment. Control panel, wires and their 
terminations, Gate and gate rollers or truck assemblies, Safety edge and battery. 

3. All Preventive Maintenance labor and travel to be included in the contract price. 

4. All Materials, such as gear or hydraulic oil, lubricants, and cleaning agents to perform 
this P M service is to be included in the contract price. 

• P.M. contract includes two separate trips to each site (semiannual). Typically performed 
one in spring and one in the fall approximately 6 months apart. 

• P. M. contract to last for a period not to exceed one year. 

• Labor rate for preventative maintenance work is performed at $130.00. 

• Project management labor rate is charged at $180.00. 

• Gate and operator and all equipment must be in proper working order prior to start of 
PM / Service contract. 

• Contract to run 4/1 /2026-3/31 /2027. 

Licensed by the NYS Department of State - License ID number 12000027676 Page 1 of 6 



Pricing & Bill of Materials 
Qty Part# ' [)e~_crip~ion 

Scope of Work - Service 

Sub Total 
TSG Labor: 

Sub-Contractor: ' 
Total Investment: 

Total 
$360.00 

$4,375.00 
$4,735.00 

• Service calls: that require Parts and Labor will require separate proposal and approval 
as needed; to be performed and billed on a per call basis. Labor time is based on the 
time involved to complete the service call; calculated on a portal-to-portal bases and 
charged at the special service contract rate of $130.00 hour during normal business 
hours. No charge is made for mileage. Requests for repair service received after 4PM 
will be billed at the Overtime rate which is 1 1 \2 times the special service contract rate 
of $130.00 per hour. Project management labor rate is charged at $180.00. 

• Service contract to last for a period not to exceed one year. 

• Contract to run 4/1/2026-3/31/2027. 

Pricing Summary 

Investment required for Preventative Maintenance $4,735.00 

Clarifications 

• TSG must have access to useable electrical outlets during the installation process. 

• The pricing set forth in this proposal is based on the number of devices to be installed and 
services to be performed as set forth in the Scope of Work ("Bill of Materials" and "Scope 
of Work"). If the actual number of devices installed or services to be performed is greater 
than that set forth in the Scope of Work, the price will be increased accordingly. 

• Fees for permits/inspections are not included in our proposal and shall not be TSG's 
responsibility, if required. 

• Pricing for any optional equipment is based upon acceptance and installation at the time 
of the base system installation. 

• Customer to paint & patch, if required, where any existing devices have been removed. 
I 

• TSG will work as· required on "A" Shift (8:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday through Friday 
excluding Holidays). 

• TSG will warranty work as required on "A" Shift (8:00 AM to 5:00 PM) weekdays. 24 Hour 
emergency services after hours and weekends will be at TSG's prevailing rate. 

• All change orders will be in writing. 

2/10/2026 Page 2 of 6 



Labor Rates 

Wages paid on this project will be paid in accordance with the current New York State 
Prevailing Wage Schedule. 

Payment Terms 

This contract will be billed in advance of services. Invoices will be due net 30. A 2% finance 
charge will be applied on invoices over 30 days. 

Sales Tax 

New York State Sales Tax is not included in the quoted price. If you are tax exempt, please 
provide your tax exempt certificate. If you choose to file a capital improvement certificate for 
this project you will be obligated to pay sales or use tax on materials in addition to the cost 
included in this proposal. Capital improvement certificates must be on flle with TSG prior 
to the equipment order being placed. Capital improvement certificates cannot be accepted 
after the equipment order is placed. 

Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale 

Technical Systems Group, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "TSG" or "Seller" agrees to sell and install, at Buyer's 
premises, and buyer agrees to buy, an electronic alarm system, consisting of the equipment: described in this 
proposal: 

Warranty- NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS: CUSTOMERS EXCLUSIVE REMEDY: 

In the event that any part of the provided system becomes defective, or in the event that any repairs are 
required, TSG agrees to make all repairs as described below. 

TSG's Workmanship: 
TSG warrants that installation, repair or support services performed hereunder by TSG shall be free of defects 
in workmanship for a period of one year from the date of completion of such services ("warranty period"). 
Defects in TSG's workmanship in connection with such services that occur during the warranty period shall be 
corrected by TSG at its expense by re-performance, repair or replacement, using new or like-new equipment 
and materials. Warranty re-performance, replacements or repairs by TSG shall not operate to extend the 
warranty period. 

Products/Equipment/Materials: 
TSG passes through any and all warranties to Customer as the manufacturer thereof makes available to its 
end-users, such as Customer. TSG will, upon request, facilitate warranty-related communications with product 
manufacturers. Any charges incurred by TSG in facilitating warranty claims, such as shipping, will be billable to 
Customer. Customer will comply with all end-user requirements of such manufacturers, including, but not limited 
to, those related to the intellectual property rights of the manufacturers All products sold by TSG to Customer, 
hereunder, are sold and/or licensed by the manufacturer thereof for use by the Customer. TSG represents and 
warrants that, as of the time of installation, it has paid or will pay all license fees for software supplied. Any and 
all software upgrade licensee fees must be paid by customer. TSG reserves the option to either replace or 
repair the alarm equipment, and reserves the right to substitute materials of equal quality at time of 
replacement, or to use reconditioned parts in fulfillment of this warranty. This warranty does not include 
batteries, reprogramming, damage by lightning, electrical surge, wire or communication pathway interruption of 
service. 

2/10/2026 Page 3 of 6 



Software: 
TSG warrants that any software provided in the performance of this Agreement, as well as software contained 
in or sold as part of any Equipment described in this Agreement , will reasonably conform to its published 
specifications in effect at the time of delivery and for ninety (90) days after delivery. However, Customer agrees 
and acknowledges that TSG is a reseller of software products from various manufacturers and that the software 
may have inherent defects because of its complexity. TSG's sole obligation with respect to software, and 
Customer's sole remedy, shall be to make available published modifications, designed to correct inherent 
defects, which become available from the manufacturer during the warranty period. 

TSG represents and warrants that in performing support services including product installations hereunder it 
shall: (i) use only qualified personnel; (ii) ensure that the support services are performed in accordance with 
generally applicable industry standards; (iii) comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations; and (iv) 
ensure that TSG personnel perform in a workmanlike fashion. 
Warranty work will be performed during normal business hours. After hours, weekend and Holiday service 
requests will be billed at TSG's then current labor rates. This includes warranty related requests. 

TSG does not represent nor warrant that the Security Equipment will prevent any loss, damage or injury to 
person or property, by reason of burglary, theft, hold-up, tire, smoke, equipment failure or otherwise, or that the 
security equipment will in all cases provide the protection for which it is installed or intended. Customer 
acknowledges that TSG is not an insurer, and that Customer assumes all risk for loss or damage to customer's 
premises or Its contents. TSG has made no representations or warranties, and hereby disclaims any warranty 
of merchantability or fitness for any particular use. Customer's exclusive remedy for TSG's default hereunder is 
to require TSG to repair or replace, at TSG's option, any equipment covered by this contract which is non­
operational. Customer authorizes TSG to access the various systems covered by this agreement to input or 
delete data and programming. 

The warranty does not cover any damage to material or equipment caused by accident, misuse, attempted or 
unauthorized repair service, modification or improper installation by anyone other than TSG. TSG shall not be 
liable for consequentia l damages. Buyer acknowledges that any affirmation of fact or promise made by TSG 
shall not be deemed to create an express warranty unless included in this contract in writing; that Buyer is not 
relying on TSG's skill or judgment in selecting or furnishing a system suitable for any particular purpose; and 
that there are no warranties which extend beyond those on the face of this agreement. 

Warranty services shall be performed during TSG's normal business hours. After hours, weekend and Holiday 
warranty service will be billable at TSG's then current hourly rates. 

1. DELAY IN INSTALLATION: TSG shall not be liable for any damage or loss sustained by Buyer as 

a result of delay in installation of equipment, equipment failure or for interruptions of service due to electric 
failure strikes, walkouts, war, acts of God, or other causes, including TSG's negligence in the performance 
of this contract. The estimated date work is to be substantially completed is not a definite completion date 
and time is not of the essence. 

2. TESTING OF SYSTEM: The parties hereto agree that the alarm system, once installed, is in the 
exclusive possession and control of the Buyer, and it is Buyer's sole responsibility to test the operation of 
the alarm system and to notify TSG in writing if any equipment is in need of repair. TSG shall not be 
required to service the alarm system unless it has received written notice from Buyer and upon such notice, 
TSG shall during the warranty period service the alarm system to the best of its ability within 36 hours, 
exclusive of Saturday, Sunday and legal holidays during the business hours of 9 a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday 
through Friday. Buyer agrees to test and inspect the alarm system immediately upon completion of 
installation and to advise TSG in writing within three days after installation of any defect, error or omission in 
the alarm system. In the event Buyer complies with the terms of this agreement and TSG fails to repair the 
alarm system within 36 hours after notice is given, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holiday, Buyer 
agrees to send written notice that the alarm system is in need of repair to TSG, in writing, by certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested. In any lawsuit between the parties in which the condition or 
operation of the alarm equipment is in issue, the Buyer shall be precluded from raising the issue that the 
alarm equipment was not operating unless the Buyer can produce a post office certified or registered 
receipt signed by TSG, evidencing that service was requested by Buyer. 

2/10/2026 Page 4 of 6 



3. ALTERATION OF PREMISES FOR INSTALLATION: TSG is authorized to make preparations such 
as drilling holes, driving nails, making attachments or doing any other thing necessary in seller's sole 
discretion for the installation and service of the alarm system, and TSG shall not be responsible for any 
condition created thereby as a result of such installation, service, or removal of the alarm system, and 
Buyer represents that the owner of the premises, if other than Buyer, authorizes the installation of the alarm 
system under the terms of this agreement. 

4. BUYER'S DUTY TO SUPPLY ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE SERVICE: Buyer agrees to furnish , 
at Buyer's expense, all 110 Volt AC power and electrical outlets and receptacles, telephone hook-ups, RJ31 
Block or equivalent, as deemed necessary by TSG. 

5. BUYER'S RESPONSIBILITIES: Buyer is solely responsible for any false alarm fines, permit fees 
and any other municipal assessments related to the alarm equipment and shall promptly on demand 
reimburse and indemnify TSG for any such expenses. Should TSG be required by existing or hereinafter 
enacted law to perform any service or furnish any material not specifically covered by the terms of this 
agreement Buyer agrees to pay TSG for such service or material. 

6. BUYER'S FAILURE TO PAY: In the event Buyer fails to pay TSG any monies when due, Buyer 
shall pay interest at the rate of 2% per month from the date when payment is due. 

7. LIEN LAW: TSG or any subcontractor engaged by TSG to perform the work or furnish material who 
is not paid may have a claim against purchase or the owner of the premises if other than the purchaser 
which may be enforced against the property in accordance with the applicable lien laws. 

8. INDEMNITY/WAIVER OF SUBROGATION RIGHTS: Buyer agrees to and shall indemnify and hold 
harmless TSG, its employees, agents and subcontractor, from and against all claims, lawsuits, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees and losses asserted against and alleged to be caused by TSG's performance, 
negligent performance, or failure to perform any obligation. Parties agree that there are no third party 
beneficiaries of this contract. Buyer on its behalf and any insurance carrier waives any right of subrogation 
Buyer's insurance carrier may otherwise have against TSG or TSG's subcontractors arising out of this 
agreement or the relation of the parties hereto. 

9. EXCULPATORY CLAUSE: TSG and Buyer agree that the alarm equipment, once installed, 
becomes the personal property of the Buyer; that the equipment is not permanently attached to the reality 
and shall not be deemed fixtures. Buyer agrees that TSG is not an insurer and no insurance coverage is 
offered herein. The alarm system is designated to reduce certain risks of loss, though TSG does not 
guarantee that no loss will occur. TSG is not assuming liability, and therefore shall not be liable to Buyer for 
any loss, personal injury or property damage susta ined by Buyer as a result of burglary, theft, hold-up, fire, 
equipment failure, smoke, or any other cause, whatsoever, regardless of whether or not such loss or 
damage was caused by or contributed to by TSG's negligence performance or failure to perform any 
obligation. 

10. INSURANCE: The Buyer shall maintain a policy of public liability, property damage, burglary and 
theft insurance under which TSG and the Buyer are named as insured, and under which the insurer agrees 
to indemnify and hold TSG harmless from and against all costs, expenses including attorneys' fees and 
liability arising out of or based upon any and all claims, injuries and damages arising under this agreement, 
including, but not limited to, those claims, injuries and damages contributed to by TSG's negligent 
performance to any degree or its failure to perform any obligation. The minimum limits of liability of such 
insurance shall be one million dollars for any injury or death, and property damage, burglary and theft 
coverage in an amount necessary to indemnify Buyer for property on its premises. TSG shall not be 
responsible for any portion of any loss or damage which is recovered or recoverable by the Buyer from 
insurance covering such loss or damage or for such loss or damage against which the Buyer is indemnified 
or insured. 

11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: Buyer agrees, that should there arise any liability on the part ofTSG 
as a result of TSG's negligent performance to any degree of failure or perform any of TSG's obligations or 
equipment failure, that TSG's liability shall be limited the sum of $250.00 or 5% of the sales price, 
whichever is greater. If Buyer wishes to increase TSG's maximum amount ofTSG's limitation of liability, 
Buyer may as a matter of right, at any time, by entering into a supplemental contract, obtain a higher limit by 
paying an annual payment consonant with TSG's increased liability. This shall not be construed as 
insurance coverage. 

12. LEGAL ACTION: In the event TSG institutes legal action to recover any amounts owed by buyer to 
TSG hereunder, the parties agree that the amount to be recovered, and any judgment to be entered, shall 
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include interest at the rate of 2% per month from the date payment is due and TSG's legal fees of 33% of 
every amount due TSG by buyer. 

The parties waive trial by jury in any action between them. In any action commenced by TSG against 
Buyer, Buyer shall not be permitted to interpose any counterclaim. 

Any action by Buyer against TSG must be commenced within thirteen months of the accrual of the 
cause of action or shall be barred. All actions or proceedings against TSG must be based on the provisions 
of this agreement. Any other action that Buyer may have or bring against TSG in respect to other services 
rendered in connection with this agreement shall be deemed to have merged in and be restricted to the 
terms and conditions of this agreement. 

Buyer waives personal service of any legal process and consents that service of process may be made 
by the United States Postal Service by certified or registered mail. 

13. TSG'S RIGHT TO SUBCONTRACT SPECIAL SERVICES: Buyer agrees that TSG is authorized 
and permitted to subcontract any services to be provided by TSG to third parties who may be independent 
of TSG, and that TSG shall not be liable for any loss or damage sustained by Buyer by reason of fire , theft, 
burglary or any other cause whatsoever caused by the negligence of third parties. 

Buyer acknowledges that this agreement, and particularly those paragraphs relating to TSG's 
disclaimer of warranties, exemption from liability, even for its negligence, limitation of liability and third party 
indemnification, inure to the benefit of and are applicable to any assignee, subcontractors and 
communication centers of TSG. 

14. FULL AGREEMENT/SEVERABILITY/CONFLICTING DOCUMENTS: This agreement constitutes 
the full understanding of the parties and may not be amended or modified or canceled except in writing 
signed by both parties, except TSG's requirements regarding items of protection provided for in this 
agreement imposed by Authority Having Jurisdiction. Should there arise any conflict between this 
agreement and Subscriber's purchase order or other document, this agreement will govern, whether such 
purchase order or document is prior to or subsequent to this agreement. Should any provision of this 
agreement be deemed void, all other provisions will remain in effect. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal. If you would like to proceed with the 
proposed offer, please sign and return the accepted proposal along with your purchase 
order. 

Proposal Accepted: 

Technical Systems Group, Inc. is authorized to 
proceed with the work as proposed. 

Purchase Order Number (if applicable) 

PONum 

Customer Authorized Representative 

Name 

Title 

Signature ______________ _ 

Date 

2/10/2026 

Proposal Submitted: 

Technical Systems Group, Inc. 

1799 N. Clinton Ave. 

Rochester, NY 14621 

Account Executive 

Name Michael Barringer 

TSG Authorized Representative 

Name 

Title 

Signature _____________ _ 

Date February 10, 2026 
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DRAFT
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Board of Directors 
Monroe County Water Authority: 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Monroe County Water Authority (the 
Authority), a discretely presented component unit of the County of Monroe, New York, as of and for 
the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, and the related notes to financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority, as of December 31, 2025 and 2024, and the changes in its financial 
position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and 
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating 
to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

EFPR
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control­
related matters that we identified during the audits. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis and the additional information on pages 42 through 44 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
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management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
2026, on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Authority's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Williamsville, New York 
, 2026 
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MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County ofMomoe, New York) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2025 and 2024 

The Monroe County Water Authority (the Authority) is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation 
that reliably provides quality, affordable water that fosters economic vitality and enhanced quality of 
life for Monroe County, New York (the County) and area communities who request service. The 
Authority is a discretely presented component unit of the County. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the Authority include the Statements of Net Position, the Statements of 
Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, the Statements of Cash Flows, and related notes to 
financial statements. The Statements of Net Position provides information about the nature and the 
amounts of investments and resources (assets), deferred outflows ofresources, and the obligations to 
the Authority's creditors (liabilities), and deferred inflows ofresources, with the difference between 
these reported as net position. 

The Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position shows how the Authority's net 
position changed during the year. It accounts for all the year's revenue and expenses, measures the 
financial results of the Authority's operations for the year and can be used to determine how the 
Authority has funded its costs. 

The Statements of Cash Flows provides information about the Authority's cash receipts, cash 
payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, capital and related financing, and 
investing activities. 

The notes to financial statements contain information that is essential to the understanding of the 
financial statements, such as the Authority's accounting methods and policies. 

Management provides the following discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial position and 
activities. This overview is provided for the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024. The 
information contained in this analysis should be used by the reader in conjunction with the 
information contained in our audited financial statements and the notes to those financial statements, 
all of which follow this narrative on the subsequent pages. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The Authority's financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting promulgated by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Authority is a single-purpose entity and revenue 
is recognized when earned, not received. Expenses are recognized when incurred, not when they are 
paid. 

The 2025 and 2024 financial statements are presented with comparative totals from 2023. 
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MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources at the close of 2025 and 2024 by $432,657,694 and 
$412,189,389, respectively, (net position). 

• Operating revenue increased $10,012,243 from 2024 to 2025. Operating revenue increased 
$6,044,587 from 2023 to 2024. The increase in both years is due to rate increases. 

Summary of Operations and Change in Net Position 

2025 2024 2023 

Operating revenue $ 103,416,443 93,404,200 87,359,613 
Operating expenses (81,026,647) (71,760,261) (66,995,562) 

Operating income 22,389,796 21,643,939 20,364,051 
Non-operating revenue (expenses), net (7,806,700) 1,261,891 (535,556) 

Income before capital contributions 14,583,096 22,905,830 19,828,495 
Capital contributions 5,885,209 5,752,436 3,264,242 

Change in net position $ 20,468,305 28,658.266 23,092.737 

Capital contributions are revenue from developers and customers for water system capital 
improvements donated to the Authority. 
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MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

Financial Position Summarv 
Net position is an indication of the Authority's financial strength. The Authority's net position as of 
December 31, 2025 and 2024 is $432;657,694 and $412,189,389, respectively. A summary of the 
Authority's financial position is shown below. 

2025 2024 2023 
Assets: 

Current assets $158,936,026 148,589,219 136, 170,661 
Capital assets 456,263,505 451,056,546 437,921,748 
Funds held by trustee 14,264,083 15,970,948 18,491,624 
Restricted assets 1,620,943 1,573,882 1,586,728 

Total assets 631,084,557 617,190,595 594,170,761 

Deferred Outflows ofResources 21,555,976 24,178,769 24,860,254 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities, including current portion of long-term 18,935,981 18,026,271 16,759,661 
Long-term liabilities 186,930,928 183,763,943 184,098,096 

Total liabilities 205,866,909 201,790,214 200,857,757 

Deferred Inflows ofResources 14,115,930 27,389,761 34,642,135 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 332,317,569 321,464,405 303,745,086 
Restricted 1,620,943 1,573,882 1,586,728 
Unrestricted 98,719,182 89,151,102 78,199,309 

Total net position $432,657,694 412,189,389 383,531,123 

Total assets increased by $13,893,962 in 2025 due to increased investment balances and capital asset 
additions offset by depreciation expense. Total assets increased by $23,019,834 in 2024 due to 
increased investment balances and capital asset additions offset by depreciation expense. 

Total liabilities increased by $4,076,695 in 2025 due primarily to the actuarial valuation of the other 
postemployment benefits plan (OPEB). Total liabilities increased by $932,457 in 2024 due primarily 
to the actuarial valuation of the OPEB. 
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MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources at December 31, 2025 and 2024 
changed due primarily to actuarial values from OPEB and the pension plan. 

As a water utility, the Authority has a significant investment in infrastructure. The Authority's 
infrastructure includes approximately 3,350 miles of pipelines ranging from 2-inch in diameter to 60-
inch in diameter, 50 booster pumping stations, 51 storage tanks, 2 reservoirs, 3 water treatment plants, 
land and other facilities required in the treatment and distribution of potable water to its customers. 
The Authority's net position also includes funds available to pay for ongoing and future construction 
or replacements, and/or additions, to this infrastructure. 

Authority Rates and Charges 

The Authority sets its rates annually in concurrence with the adoption of its annual operating budget. 
The Authority is required by its Master Trust Indenture dated October 1, 1991 and Supplemental 
Indentures issued with and specific to each subsequent revenue bond issue (Trust Indentures) to set 
rates and fees sufficient to cover all of its operating and capital expenses. 

Many factors were considered by the Authority's Board members when the rates were being set. 
Based in part on the recommendation of the Authority's independent rate consultant, the commodity 
and base rates increased by a modest amount and are shown in the following table. 

2025 2024 2023 
Residential/ quarterly: 

Daily base charge per connection (up to¾") $ 0.28 0.27 0.26 
Commodity charge per 1,000 gallons 4.22 4.01 3.80 

Large commercial/monthly: 
Daily base charge per connection 
Commodity charge per 1,000 gallons - $ 2.24 - 58.92 2.16 - 56.70 2.08 - 54.60 

First 125,000 gallons 4.22 4.01 3.80 
Each additional 1,000 gallons 3.01 2.86 2.71 

Water district/wholesale: 
Daily base charge per connection $ 2.24- 58.92 2.16 - 56.70 2.08 - 54.60 
Commodity charge per 1,000 gallons 2.69 2.39 2.32 

Summfil'.Y of 0:gerating Revenue 
Water sales: 

Residential/quarterly $ 78,760,766 74,359,819 68,745,585 
Large commercial/monthly 8,107,334 7,797,377 7,306,289 
Water districts wholesale 6,529,984 5,656,730 5,384,851 

Total water sales 93,398,084 87,813,926 81,436,725 
Other water and operating revenue 10,018,359 5,590,274 5,922,888 

Total operating revenue $ 103A16A43 93A041200 87,359,613 

7 



DRAFTRevenue 

MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 

the County of Monroe, New York) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

Water sales for 2025 and 2024 were projected based on average historical usage with the typical 
residential customer using approximately 69 thousand gallons of water annually. The 2025 and 2024. 
water sales, which include the residential, large commercial and water district classes, were 
$5,584,158 and $6,377,201 more than those of2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Other water revenue for 2025 and 2024 includes private fire services in the amount of $1,539,594 and 
$1,517,225, respectively, and late charges in the amount of $1,230,351 and $1,201,379, respectively. 
Also included are payments made to the Authority by Genesee County for debt service on facilities 
constructed and owned by the Authority for the benefit of the respective counties. In 2025 and 2024, 
the service fee for Genesee County was $2,074,043 and $1,941,959, respectively. 

Operating Expenses 

The Authority's expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization) are budgeted and tracked 
functionally by operating department. The Authority is divided into the following five departments: 
Administration; Production and Transmission; Engineering; Facilities, Fleet and Operations; and 
Finance and Business Services. 

The following is a breakdown of the Authority's functional expenses by operating department 
( excluding depreciation and amortization): 

2025 2024 2023 

Functional expenses: 
Administration $ 4,904,612 4,257,300 3,963,220 
Production and transmission 19,239,876 17,009,294 15,610,961 
Engineering 6,239,007 5,044,432 4,515,398 
Facilities, fleet and operations 18,555,099 15,633,540 14,160,597 
Finance and business services 9,131,299 7,945,801 7,658,409 

Total functional expenses $ 58,069,893 49,890,367 45,908,585 
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MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

The following is a breakdown of the Authority's total operating expenses: 

2025 2024 
Operating expenses: 

Salaries and fringe benefits 
Operations and maintenance 
General and administrative 
City contract - capital 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

$ 28,540,452 
24,296,270 

4,990,171 
243,000 

22,956,754 

$ 81.026.647 

26,809,755 
18,608,048 
4,229,564 

243,000 
21,869,894 

71.760.261 

2023 

24,672,885 
17,144,261 
3,848,439 

243,000 
21,086,977 

66,995.562 

Total operating expenses increased $9,266,386 from 2024. Salaries and fringe benefits increased 
$1,730,697. Operations and maintenance expense increased $5,688,222 compared to 2024. General 
and administrative expenses increased $760,607 from 2024. City contract - capital is the Authority's 
share of capital projects outlined in the 2011 Exchange Agreement for Water Supply with the City of 
Rochester and did not change for 2025. 

Total operating expenses increased $4,764,699 from 2023. Salaries and fringe benefits increased 
$2,136,870. Operations and maintenance expense increased $1,463,787 compared to 2023. General 
and administrative expenses increased $381,125 from 2023. City contract- capital is the Authority's 
share of capital projects outlined in the 2011 Exchange Agreement for Water Supply with the City of 
Rochester and did not change for 2024. 

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 

The Authority's non-operating revenue (expenses) is composed of the following: 

2025 2024 2023 
Non-operating revenue (expenses): 

Federal interest subsidy $ 1,555,133 1,610,474 1,523,441 
Interest earnings 5,481,559 6,578,734 5,091,869 
Interest expense (6,364,394) (6,719,070) (6,931,815) 
Loss on disposal of capital assets (8,478,998) (210,489) (362,104) 
Realized and unrealized gains 

and losses on investments, net 2,242 143,053 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses), net $ (7 !806! 700) 1!261!891 (535!556) 
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MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

At the end of 2025 and 2024, the Authority had $456,263,505 and $451,056,546, respectively, 
invested in a broad range of capital assets (see table below). 

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 
2025 2024 2023 

Land easements 
Construction-in-progress 
Land improvements 
Production and distribution system 
Pipelines and district facilities 
Meters and services 
Automotive and construction equipment 
Water facility capital lease 
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

DEBT.ADMINISTRATION 

Water Revenue Bonds 

$ 11,218,091 10,977,267 10,892,678 
20,211,644 18,235,271 8,965,826 

8,006,237 7,899,382 7,836,830 
262,943,354 278,402,659 275,563,655 
387,205,263 373,567,985 363,090,316 
135,548,107 125,917,937 118,228,704. 

9,968,352 10,685,449 9,978,840 
76,420,099 78,056,980 78,056,980 

3,761,592 4,336,505 3,498,779 
(459,019,234) (457,022,889) (438,'190,860) 

$ 456,263,505 451,056,546 437,921,748 

As of December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority has six water revenue bond series outstanding 
totaling, $120,475,000 and $125,510,000, respectively. The 2007 Series bonds continue to be payable 
by Genesee County to the Authority under the terms of the Construction Services Agreement between 
Genesee County and the Authority dated May 24, 2000. A portion of the 2020 Series bonds are also 
payable by Genesee County to the Authority. 

Outstanding as Outstanding as Outstanding as 
of December of December of December Principal Due 

2025 .2024 2023 2026 
Authoritv Bond Series 

2007 Series Refunding $ 9,780,000 10,450,000 11,085,000 700,000 
201 OB Series 72,280,000 75,190,000 77,995,000 3,020,000 
2012 Series 3,935,000 4,185,000 4,420,000 260,000 
2013 Series 11,675,000 12,195,000 12,710,000 530,000 
2017 Series 2,805,000 3,055,000 3,290,000 265,000 
2020 Series 20,000,000 20,435,000 20,850,000 460,000 

Total $ 120,475.000 125,510,000 130,350,000 5,235,000 
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DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

Credit Ratings 

The Authority is the recipient of very favorable credit ratings from both Moody's Investors Service 
and Standard & Poor's. The Authority has an Aal rating assigned to its revenue bonds by Moody's 
Investors Service and an AA+ rating by Standard & Poor's. The Authority's bond ratings were last 
reviewed by Moody's Investor Service in March of 2020 and by Standard & Poor's in March of 2020 
in conjunction with the 2020 bond issuance. The Authority issues revenue bonds subject to its Master 
Trust Indenture dated October 1, 1991 and Supplemental Indentures issued with, and specific to, each 
subsequent revenue bond issue. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S GOALS 

The Authority continues to develop the necessary infrastructure and operational practices to meet its 
short and long- term plans while ensuring quality customer service is provided and competitive rates 
are being maintained. 

In 2026, the Authority intends to spend approximately $18M for capital improvements, including the 
following major projects. 

• Water Main Rehabilitation and Replacements 
• S WTP Infrastructure Renewal 
• Service Replacements 
• Residential Meter Replacements 
• Tank Painting and Rehabilitation 
• Vehicle Replacements 

The Authority believes it possesses the financial and leadership capabilities to accomplish its goals 
during the upcoming year. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all 
those interested. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional information should be addressed in writing to the Director of Finance & Business Services, 
Monroe County Water Authority, 475 Norris Drive, Rochester, New York, 14610 or call (585) 442-
2000. 
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DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Monroe, New York) 
Statements ofNet Position 

December 31, 2025 and 2024 

Assets: 
Current assets: 

Cash and equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued unbilled revenue 
Materials and supplies 
Prepayments and other current assets 

Total current assets 

Other assets: 
Capital assets, net 

Funds held by trustee 

Total other assets 

Restricted assets: 
Debt service fund held by trustee 
Debt service reserve held by trustee 

Total restricted assets 

Total assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 
Pension 
OPEB 
Debt refunding 

Total deferred outflows ofresources 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and other liabilities 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Accrued interest 
Current portion of water revenue bonds 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Water revenue bonds, net of bond premium of$3,747,640 

in 2025 and $3,954,403 in 2024 
Net pension liability- proportionate share 
Total OPEB liability 

Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Pension 
OPEB 

Total deferred inflows ofresources 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 

2025 

19,502,854 
111,759,598 

13,082,390 
9,948,000 
3,301,701 
1,341,483 

158,936,026 

456,263,505 
14,264,083 

470,527,588 

7,900 
1,613,043 

1,620,943 

631,084,557 

6,271,482 
15,007,790 

276,704 

21,555,976 

5,237,014 
5,947,017 
2,516,950 
5,235,000 

18,935,981 

118,987,640 
9,985,186 

57,958,102 

186,930,928 

205,866,909 

281,162 
13,834,768 

14,115,930 

332,317,569 
1,620,943 

98,719,182 

$432,657,694 

2024 

16,836,287 
105,475,926 

10,233,873 
10,128,000 
4,610,164 
1,304,969 

148,589,219 

451,056,546 
15,970,948 

467,027,494 

8,839 
1,565,043 

1,573,882 

617,190,595 

8,143,839 
15,729,327 

305,603 

24,178,769 

4,684,418 
5,687,078 
2,619,775 
5,035,000 

18,026,271 

124,429,403 
8,417,137 

50,917,403 

183,763,943 

201,790,214 

4,639,069 
22,750,692 

27,389,761 

321,464,405 
1,573,882 

89,151,102 

412,189,389 



DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Monroe, New York) 
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024 

Operating revenue: 
Water sales - residential 
Water sales - industrial/commercial 
Water sales - water district 
Other water revenue 
Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenue 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries andfringe benefits 
Operations and maintenance 
General and administrative 
City contract - capital 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Non-operating revenue (expenses): 
Federal interest subsidy 
Interest earnings 
Interest expense 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Realized and unrealized gain and losses on investments, net 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses), net 

Income before capital contributions 

Capital contributions - developers and customers 

Change in net position 

Net position at beginning of year 

Net position at end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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2025 

$ 78,760,766 
8,107,334 
6,529,984 
5,185,636 
4,832,723 

103,416,443 

28,540,452 
24,296,270 

4,990,171 
243,000 

22,956,754 

81,026,647 

22,389,796 

1,555,133 
5,481,559 

(6,364,394) 
(8,478,998) 

(7,806,700) 

14,583,096 

5,885,209 

20,468,305 

412,189,389 

$ 432,657,694 

2024 

74,359,819 
7,797,377 
5,656,730 
4,915,455 

674,819 

93,404,200 

26,809,755 
18,608,048 
4,229,564 

243,000 
21,869,894 

71,760,261 

21,643,939 

1,610,474 
6,578,734 

(6,719,070) 
(210,489) 

2,242 

1,261,891 

22,905,830 

5,752,436 

28,658,266 

383,531,123 

412,189,389 



DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Monroe, New York) 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024 

2025 2024 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from customers $ 100,747,926 90,613,483 
Payments to suppliers (27,704,896) (23,837,393) 
Payments to employees (30,351,702) (27,937,359) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 42,691,328 38,838,731 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Deposits and withdrawals to and from funds held 

by trustees, net . 1,659,804 2,533,522 
Purchases of capital assets (31,262,149) (29,744,644) 
Disposal of capital assets 504,647 281,899 
Federal interest subsidy 1,555,133 1,610,474 
Repayments of water revenue bonds (5,035,000) (4,840,000) 
Amortization of debt refunding 28,899 28,901 
Amortization of bond premiums (206,763) (206,763) 
Interest paid (6,467,219) (6,815,648) 

Net cash used in capital and related financing 
activities (39,222,648) (37,152,259) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investments, net (6,283,672) (7,765,634) 
Interest received 5,481,559 6,578,734 
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on 

investments, net 2,242 

Net cash used in from investing activities (802,113) (1,184,658) 

Change in cash and equivalents 2,666,567 501,814 
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 16,836,287 16,334,473 

Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 19,502,854 16,836,287 

(Continued) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Monroe, New York) 
Statements of Cash Flows, Continued 

2025 2024 
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash flow 

provided by operating activities: 
Operating income $ 22,389,796 21,643,939 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash flows provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 22,956,754 21,869,894 
Bad debt expense (47,460) (40,228) 
Changes in: 

Accounts receivable (2,801,057) (910,489) 
Accrued unbilled revenue 180,000 (1,840,000) 
Materials and supplies 1,308,463 (1,176,253) 
Prepayments and other current assets (36,514) (184,140) 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 552,596 603,612 
Accrued payroll and benefits 259,939 564,576 
Pension items (917,501) 941,898 
OPEB items (1,153,688) (2,634,078) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 42,691,328 38,838,731 

Non-cash capital and related financing activities: 
Capital assets received directly from developers 

and customers $ 5,885,209 5,752,436 

Disposal of capital assets $ (8,478,998) (210,489) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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DRAFT( 1) Organization 

MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 

the County of Monroe, New York) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2025 and 2024 

Monroe County Water Authority (the Authority), a discretely presented component unit of the 
County of Monroe, New York (the County), is a public benefit corporation organized under 
the Public Authorities Law of the State of Nevv York. The Authority was created to finance, 
construct, operate and maintain a water supply and distribution system for the benefit of the 
residents of the County and the State ofNew York (the State). 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and financial 
reporting principles. 

The activities of the Authority are accounted for similar to those often found in the private 
sector using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. All assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, net position, revenue, and expenses are accounted for through a single 
enterprise fund with revenue recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time 
liabilities are incurred. 

(b) Basis of Presentation 
GASB requires the classification of net position into three categories defined as follows: 

• Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent capital­
related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent 
proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that 
portion of the debt is included in the same net position component as the unspent proceeds. 

• Restricted net position - This component of net position consists of amounts which have 
external constraints placed on its use imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
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DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County ofMomoe, New York) 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(1) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued 

(b) Basis of Presentation, Continued 
• Unrestricted net position - This component consists of net position that does not meet the 

definition of "net investment in capital assets" or "restricted." 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority·s 
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

(c) Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments 
For purposes of presenting the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all highly 

liquid short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less from date 
of purchase to be cash or cash equivalents. 

A framework has been established for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair 
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair 
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value 
hierarchy are described below: 

• Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
assets or liabilities in active markets that the Authority has the ability to access. 

• Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 

• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities; and 

• Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 
correlation or other means. 

• Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the 
fair value measurement. 

An asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based 
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation 
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

The Authority assess the levels of the investments at each measurement date, and transfers 
between levels are recognized on the actual date of the event or change in circumstances 
that caused the transfer in accordance with its accounting policy regarding the recognition 
of transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy. 
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DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued 

(d) Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable consists of fees for services for water charges due from individuals, 

businesses, and other governments. Accounts receivable are carried on the balance sheet 
at net realizable value. The Authority has elected to record bad debts using the direct 
write-off method. GAAP requires the allowance method be used to recognize bad debts; 
however, the effect of using the direct write-off method is not materially different from 
the results that would have been obtained under the allowance method. 

(e) Accrued Unbilled Revenue 
Accrued unbilled revenues represent revenue earned in the current year but not billed to 

customers until future dates, usually within three months, and is an estimate made by 
management using historical trends. 

(f) Materials and Supplies 
Materials and supplies are stated at cost and are determined using a weighted-average method. 

(g) Prepayments and Other Current Assets 
Prepayment and other current assets reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 

are recorded as prepayments and other current assets. 

(h) Capital Assets 
Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided using the straight-

line method over the following estimated useful lives or lease term if shorter: 

Land improvements IO - 20 years 
Production and distribution system 5 - 40 years 
Pipelines and district facilities 40 years 
Meters and services 25 - 40 years 
Automotive and construction equipment 5 years 
Water facility capital lease 5 - 25 years 
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 5 - 15 years 

Improvements, renewals and significant repairs over $5,000 that extend the life of the asset 
are capitalized; other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. When assets 
are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related asset and accumulated depreciation is 
written off and any unrelated gains or losses are recorded. 
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DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

(i) Funds Held by Trustee 

(j) 

Funds held by Bank of New York (the Trustee) consist of fixed income United States 
Government securities. These funds are required to be held in accordance with the trust 
indentures for the water revenue bonds as described in note 6. 

As of December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority had the following funds held by trustee: 

2025 2024 

Capital improvement fund $ 8,597,009 10,561,115 
New construction fund 5,667,074 5,409,833 

Total funds held by trustee $ 14,264,083 15~970.948 

Accrued Payroll and Benefits 
It is the Authority's policy to record employee benefits, including accumulated vacation and 

sick leave, as a current liability on the statements of net position. The Authority's 
employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on the underlying 
employee contracts. 

(k) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
The Authority provides certain health care benefits to its retired employees in accordance with 

the provisions of employment contracts. 

(1) Unamortized Bond Premium 
Bond premium related to the issuance of debt obligations is amortized over the term of the 

respective bond issues. 

(m) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 

period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The 
Authority has three items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first item is 
related to the pension and represents the effect of the net change in the Authority's 
proportion of the collective net pension asset/liability and difference during the 
measurement period between the Authority's contributions and its proportionate share of 
total contributions to the pension system not included in pension expense as well as the 
Authority's contributions to the pension system subsequent to the measurement date. The 
second item is related to OPEB and relates to differences between expected and actual 
experience as well as changes in assumptions. The third item is the deferred loss the 
Authority incurred on its debt refundings. 

19 



DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(2) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued 

( m) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources. Continued 
Deferred inflovvs of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future 

period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow ofresources (revenue) until that time. 
The Authority has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first is related 
to the pension and represents the effect of the net change in the Authority's proportion of 
the collective net pension asset/liability and difference during the measurement periods 
between the Authority's contributions and its proportion share of total contributions to the 
pension systems not included in the pension expense. The second item is related to OPEB 
and relates to differences between expected and actual experience and changes in 
assumptions. 

(n) Revenue Recognition 
Revenues from water sales are recognized at the time of service delivery based on actual or 

estimated water meter readings. 

(o) Operating and Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses 
Operating revenue consists of water revenue and other related revenue. The Authority defines 

non-operating revenue as interest earnings on investment assets and realized and 
unrealized gains or losses on sales of investments. Non-operating expenses are defined as 
interest expense and other costs related to issuance oflong-term debt and gains and losses 
on disposals of capital assets. The Authority also receives Federal interest subsidies which 
are considered non-operating revenue. 

(p) Capital Contributions from Developers and Customers 
Capital contributions from developers and customers represent amounts for betterments or 

additions to capital assets that have been contributed to the Authority. 

(q) Income Tax Status 
As a public benefit corporation, the Authority is exempt from federal and state income taxes, 

as well as state and local property and sales taxes. 

(r) Estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management 

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
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DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued 

(s) Leases and Subscriptions 
The Authority adopted the provisions of GASB statement No. 87 - '·Leases'· and GASB 

Statement No. 96 - "Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements." The 
primary objective of these statements is to better meet the information needs of financial 
statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases and 
subscriptions by governments. The Authority has performed an evaluation of its leasing 
and subscription transactions, and determined that the implementation of these statements 
will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Authority. 

(3) Water Agreement 

The Authority and the City of Rochester, New York (the City) entered into an agreement in 2011 
that provides for the exchange of water between the two entities at a fixed rate that is 
established annually based on the weighted average cost of each entity's typical residential 
customer. Authority consumption of the City's water is offset against the City's consumption 
of the Authority's water with the net consumption charged at the annual exchange rate. For 
the years ended December 3 1, 2025 and 2024, the Authority had net purchases from the City 
of $2,156,808 and $1,901,205, respectively. 

( 4) Deposits With Financial Institutions and Investments 

The guidelines established by the Authority permit the investment of funds held by the Authority, 
and funds held in trust for the Authority, to be invested in accordance with New York State 
Public Authorities Law. Investments must be in the form of obligations of the State, or in 
general obligations of its political subdivisions; obligations of the United States or its agencies 
whose principal and interest payments are fully guaranteed by the federal governrnent; and in 
collateralized time deposits or certificates of deposit issued by a commercial bank or trust 
company, which is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The 
Authority's investment policy limits its deposit and investment activity to time deposits, 
demand deposits, certificates of deposit, United States Government obligations and 
repurchase agreements. 

The Authority's investment policy requires its deposits and investments, not controlled by the 
Trustee, to be 100% collateralized through federal deposit insurance or other obligations. 
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United 
States or the State. Collateral must be delivered to the Authority or an authorized custodial 
bank. In addition, the Authority's investment policy includes the following provisions for 
credit risk and custodial credit risk (as defined below): 
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DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(4) Deposits With Financial Institutions and Investments, Continued 

• Custodial credit risk - For cash deposits or investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in 
the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority will not be able to recover the value 
of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

The Authority limits its investments (other than United States securities held by the 
Trustee) at any financial institution to 1 % of such institution's total assets. 

Any financial institution in which the Authority invests funds must have in excess of 
$50,000,000 in capital stock and retained earnings and the Authority limits its investments 
(other than United States securities held by the Trustee) at these institutions to 5% of the 
total capital stock and retained earnings. 

• Credit risk - For cash deposits or investments, credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other 
counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 

The Authority limits its investments in money market funds to those with the highest short­
term or long-term rating by at least one nationally recognized rating agency. The money 
market funds detailed in this section are used as savings accounts by the Authority and 
these accounts are classified as cash and cash equivalents and not investments. 

As of December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority's deposits and investments in various 
banks are detailed below. 

Total deposits of cash and equivalents, marketable secuntles and related collateral, 
included in cash and equivalents and marketable securities, not controlled by the Trustee 
(including certificates of deposit and money market funds) are as follows as of December 
31, 2025 and 2024: 

Demand deposits 
Time deposits 

Total cash and investments 

Insured cash - FDIC 
Collateralized with securities held by 

pledging financial institution 

Total insured and collateralized cash and equivalents 

22 

$ 

$ 

Carrying 
Amount 

5,370,040 
14,132,814 

19!502!854 

2025 
Bank 

Balance 

5,657,181 
14,132,814 

19!789!995 

$ 1,250,000 

19,334,640 

$ 20!584!640 



DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Monroe, New York) 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(4) Deposits With Financial Institutions and Investments, Continued 

Demand deposits 
Time deposits 

Total cash and investments 

Insured cash - FDIC 
Collateralized with securities held by 

$ 

$ 

Carrying 
Amount 

4,195,413 
12,640.874 

16.836.287 

2024 
Bank 

Balance 

8,681,139 
12,640,874 

21.322.013 

$ 1,000,000 

pledging financial institution 20,777,775 

Total insured and collateralized cash and equivalents $ 21.777.775 

Total cash and equivalents and marketable securities by type as of December 31, 2025 and 2024, 
including government money market funds controlled by the Trustee and reported in 'Capital 
improvement fund', 'New construction fund', and 'Restricted Assets' in the accompanying 
financial statements, are as follows: 

2025 2024 

United States Treasury obligations $ 1,084,947 3,965,580 
United States Treasury bills 124,098,296 119,055,176 
Cash 21,964.235 16,836,287 

$ 1472147A78 139,857.043 

United States Treasury obligations and United States Treasury bills are considered level 1 
investments. The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value 
hierarchy established by GAAP. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Level l inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. 

The following deposits and investments, excluding amounts controlled by the Trustee, held with 
one financial institution represent five percent or more of the Authority's total deposits and 
investments at either December 31, 2025 and 2024, or both: 

2025 2024 

M&TBank $ 73,089,894 67,471,659 
Percentage 55% 53% 

Key Bank 57,918,620 58,773,900 
Percentage 44% 46% 
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Capital asset activity for the years ended December 3 l ,_2025 and 2024 was as follows: 

2025 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Transfers Dis2osab Balance 

Land and easements $ 10,977,267 240,824 11,218,091 
Construction-in-progress 18,235,271 29,376,732 (27,383,778) (16,581) 20,211,644 

Total non-depreciable assets 29,212,538 29,376,732 (27,142,954) (16,581) 31,429,735 

Land improvements 7,899,382 106,855 8,006,237 
Production and distnbution system 278,402,659 9,356,587 (24,815,892) 262,943,354 
Pipelines and district facilities 373,567,985 3,145,120 10,492,158 387,205,263 
Meters and services 125,917,937 4,625,506 5,889,630 (884,966) 135,548,107 
Automotive and construction equipment 10,685,449 810,832 (1,527,929) 9,968,352 
Water facility capital lease 78,056,980 (1,636,881) 76,420,099 
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 4,336,505 486,892 (1,061,805) 3,761,592 

Total depreciable assets at cost 878,866,897 7,770,626 27,142,954 (29,927,473) 883,853,004 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Land improvements (3,773,834) (213,143) (3,986,977) 
Production and distribution system (137,601,645) (9,101,318) 16,233,914 (130,469,049) 
Pipelines and district facilities (175,148,039) (8,540,046) (183,688,085) 
Meters and services (53,536,774) (3,722,499) 821,557 (56,437,716) 
Automotive and construction equipment (5,526,163) (974,155) 1,253,597 (5,246,721) 
Water facility capital lease (78,056,980) 1,636,881 (76,420,099) 
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment (3,379,454) (405,593) 1,014,460 (2,770,587) 

Total accumulated depreciation (457,022,889) (22,956,754) 20,960,409 (459,019,234) 

Total depreciable assets, net 421,844,008 (15,186,128) 27,142,954 (8,967,064) 424,833,770 

Total capital assets, net $ 451,056,546 14,190,604 (8,983,645) 456,263,505 
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Beginning 
Balance Additions 

202--1-

Transfers 

$ 10,892,678 8--1-,589 

Disposal~ 

Land and easements 
Con.~truction-in-progress 8,965,826 29,373,326 (20,103,881) ----

Total non-depreciable assets 

Land improvements 
Production and distribution system 
Pipelines and district fucilities 
Meters and services 
Automotive and construction equipment 
Water fucility capital lease 
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 

Total depreciable assets at cost 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Land improvements 
Production and distribution system 
Pipelines and district fucilities 
Meters and services 
Automotive and construction equipment 
Water fucility capital lease 
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total depreciable assets, net 

Total capital assets, net 

(6) Water Revenue Bonds 

$ 

19,858,50--1- 29,373,326 (20,019,292) ----

7,836,830 
275,563,655 
363,090,316 
118,228,704 

9,978,840 
78,056,980 

3,498,779 

856,254,104 

(3,666,069) 
(129,850,480) 
(166,832,437) 

(50,969,403) 
(5,618,537) 

(78,056,980) 
(3,196,954) 

( 438,190,860) 

418,063,244 

437,921,748 

3,--1-20,869 
2,702,885 

6,123,754 

(205,779) 
(9,068,693) 
(8,315,602) 
(3,282,826) 

(814,494) 

(182,500) 

(21,869,894) 

(15,746,140) 

13,627,186 

169,126 
4,160,810 
7,056,800 
5,901,712 
1,893,118 

837,726 

20,019,292 

20,019,292 

(106,574) 
(1,321,806) 

(915,364) 
(1,186,509) 

(3,530,253) 

98,014 
1,317,528 

715,455 
906,868 

3,037,865 

(492,388) 

(492,388) 

Ending 
Balance 

10,977,267 
18,235,271 

29,212,538 

7,899,382 
278,402,659 
373,567,985 
125,917,937 
10,685,449 
78,056,980 

4,336,505 

878,866,897 

(3,773,834) 
(137,601,645) 
(175,148,039) 
(53,536,774) 
(5,526,163) 

(78,056,980) 
(3,379,454) 

(457,022,889) 

421,844,008 

451,056,546 

The Authority has entered into Trust Indentures under which all outstanding bonds have been 
issued. The Trust Indentures pledge all revenues and other income collected by the Authority 
for payment of principal and interest on the bonds. The Trust Indentures also generally require 
establishment of a trust fund called "the water system revenue fund," for which the Authority 
acts as a trustee, into which all revenue is to be deposited, as well as a debt service reserve 
fund under which the Authority is required to maintain deposit amounts sufficient to cover the 
annual debt service or provide a surety bond ( as defined in the Trust Indentures) of its bonds. 
The Authority covenants in its indenture that it will establish water rates sufficient to cover 
the sum of: (1) 1.2 times debt service, (2) expenses of operating, maintaining, renewing and 
replacing the water system and maintaining the debt service reserve fund, and (3) any 
additional amounts required to pay all other charges payable from the Authority's revenue. 
As of December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority is in compliance with its financial 
covenants. 
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(6) Water Revenue Bonds, Continued 

Series 2007 Bonds 
The Authority issued 200 l series bonds in the amount of $20,000,000 \vhich are entirely payable 

by Genesee County to the Authority under the terms of the Construction Services Agreement 
between Genesee County and the Authority dated May 24, 2000. The first principal payment 
on the 2001 Series was made in 2006. During 2007, the bonds were advance refunded by the 
Authority on behalf of Genesee County with the issuance of the Series 2007 Bonds. 

In 2015, the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) refinanced its 2007 
series bonds, which included bonds issued for the Authority. The Authority's portion of the 
bond, $16,425,000, was part of the EFC issue of$367,455,000 State Clean Water & Drinking 
Water Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds Series 20150, dated August 13, 2015. The 
Authority's 2007 series bonds, which were part of the original EFC 2007 financing, remained 
intact with the Authority receiving its share of the interest savings through credits from EFC 
at the time of debt service payments. This refinancing and its associated costs will save 
Genesee County over $2,700,000 over the term of the bond. The entire $16,425,000 continues 
to be payable by Genesee County to the Authority under the Construction Services Agreement 
between Genesee County and the Authority dated May 24, 2000. In addition, the bond 
refunding resulted in present value savings to the Authority of $1,470,817. 

Series 2010 Bonds 
In 2010, the Authority issued the 2010 Series bonds which refunded the 1993 Series A bonds and 

the 1997 bonds. This refinancing and its associated costs were paid by the Authority and will 
save the Authority approximately $773,000 over the term of the bond. In addition, the bond 
refunding resulted in an economic gain on refunding of $680,000. The excess of the net 
carrying amount of the refunded bonds over the reacquisition price in the amount of $527,039 
has been deferred and was allocated between bond premium and deferred gain on refunding 
and is being amortized over the term of the new bonds using the straight-line method through 
2035. 

Series 2012 Bonds 
In 2012, the Authority issued $6,290,000 of bonds. The bonds mature in 2037 with a stated 

interest rate that ranges from 3.0% to 5.0%. 

Series 2013 Bonds 
In 2013, the Authority issued $18,125,341 of bonds. The bonds mature in 2042 with a stated 

interest rate that ranges from 1.44% to 4.69%. These bonds were re-financed in 2023 with a 
ne\Y interest rate that ranges from 3.15% to 4.69%. There were no premium received or 
change in principal due. 
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(6) Water Revenue Bonds. Continued 

Series 201 7 Bonds 
In 2017, the Authority issued the 2017 Series bonds which \Vas used to advance refund a portion 

of the Authority's Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010. Such proceeds were deposited 
with the Trustee to be held in a special trust account for the redemption of the refunded bonds 
on their respective redemption dates. $4,300,000 of bonds outstanding was considered 
defeased at December 31, 2017. This refinancing and its associated costs were paid by the 
Authority and will save the Authority approximately $345,000 over the term of the bond. In' 
addition, the bond refunding resulted in an economic gain on refunding of $481,576. The 
excess of the net carrying amount of the refunded bonds over the reacquisition price in the 
amount of $330,072 has been deferred and is being amortized over the term of the new bonds 
using the straight-line method through 2034. 

Series 2020 Bonds 
In 2020, the Authority issued $21,920,000 of bonds. The bonds mature in 2050 with a stated 

interest rate that ranges from 4.0% to 5.0%. The Authority received $3,576,781 in premiums 
for this issuance. 

Remedies for Default 
The Authority covenants that if an Event of Default shall have happened and shall not have been 

remedied, upon demand of the Trustee, the Authority shall pay over to the Trustee and cause 
any Construction Fund Custodian to pay over the Trustee (i) forthwith, all moneys, securities 
and funds then held by any Construction Fund Custodian, and (ii) as promptly as practicable 
after receipt thereof, all Revenues. 

During the continuance of an Event of Default due to payment failure, the Revenues received by 
the Trustee or by a Bondholders' Committee shall be applied by the Trustee or by the 
Bondholders' Committee, as the case may be, first to the payment of all necessary and proper 
Operating expenses of the Water System and all other proper disbursements or liabilities made 
or incurred by the Trustee or by the Bondholders' Committee, as the case may be; secondly, 
to the then due and overdue payments into the Bond Fund, including the making up of 
deficiencies therein; and lastly, for any lawful purpose in connection with the Water System. 

Changes in Water Revenue Bonds 
At December 31, 2025 and 2024, $276,704 and $305,603, respectively, of the deferred amount 

on refunding was included in deferred outflows of resources on the statements of net position. 
For the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, interest expense was $5,481,559 and 
$6,719,070, respectively, on the water revenue bonds. Cash paid for interest was $6,467,219 
and $6,815,648, during the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. 
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(6) Water Revenue Bonds. Continued 

Long-term water revenue bond activity for the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024: 

2025 

Beginning Ending Due \Yithin Due After 
Balance [ncreases Decreases Balance One Year One Year 

Bonds issued in 2007 as part of 
refunding that mature in annual amounts 
ranging from $610,000 to $1,115,000 
from 2021 to 2036 bearing interest 
ranging from 4.182%, to 4. 97'i•,, $ 10,450,000 670,000 9,780,000 700,000 9,080,000 

Bonds issued in 2010 Series B as part of 
refunding that mature in annual amounts 
ranging from $2,515,000 to $5,775,000 
from 2021 to 2042 bearing interest 
ranging from 4.49% to 6.34% 75,190,000 - 2,910,000 72,280,000 3,020,000 69,260,000 

Bonds issued in 2012 that mature in 
annual amounts ranging from $205,000 
to $410,000 from 2021 to 2037 bearing 
interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% 4,185,000 250,000 3,935,000 260,000 3,675,000 

Bonds issued in 2013 that mature in 
annual amounts ranging from $490,000 
to $960,000 from 2021 to 2042 bearing 
interest ranging from 3.15% to 4.69%, 12,195,000 520,000 11,675,000 530,000 11,145,000 

Bonds issued in 2017 as part of 
refunding that mature in annual amounts 
ranging from $215,000 to $360,000 from 

2021 to 2034 bearing interest ranging 
from 2.0%, to 5.0% 3,055,000 250,000 2,805,000 • 265,000 2,540,000 

Bond issued in 2020 mature in annual 
amounts ranging from $300,000 to 
$220,000 from 2021 to 2050 bearing 
interest from 4.0%, to 5.0% 20,435,000 435,000 20,000,000 460,000 19,540,000 

Add: Bond premiums 3,954,403 206,763 3,747,640 3,747,640 

Long-term water revenue bond 

liabilities $ 129,464,403 - 5,241,763 124,222,640 5,235,000 118,987,640 
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(6} Water Revenue Bonds, Contim~ed 

202.:J. 

Beginning EnJing 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Bonds issueJ in 2007 as part or 

rdimding that mature in annual amounts 

ranging from $610,000 to $1,115,000 

from 2021 to 2036 bearing interest 

ranging from 4.182%, to 4.97% $ 11,085,000 635,000 10,450,000 

Bonds issued in 2010 Series B as part of 

refunding that mature in annual amounts 

ranging from $2,515,000 to $5,775,000 

from 2021 to 2042 bearing interest 

ranging from 4.49% to 6.34% 77,995,000 - 2,805,000 75,190,000 

Bonds issued in 2012 that mature in 

annual amounts ranging from $205,000 

to $410,000 from 2021 to 2037 bearing 

interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% 4,420,000 235,000 4,185,000 

Bonds issued in 2013 that mature in 

annual amounts ranging from $490,000 

to $960,000 from 2021 to 2042 bearing 

interest ranging from 3.15% to 4.69°/4, 12,710,000 515,000 12,195,000 

Bonds issued in 2017 as part of 

refunding that mature in annual amounts 

ranging from $215,000 to $360,000 from 

2021 to 2034 bearing interest ranging 

from 2.0'% to 5.0%, 3,290,000 235,000 3,055,000 

Bond issued in 2020 mature in annual 

amounts ranging from $300,000 to 

$220,000 from 2021 to 2050 bearing 

interest from 4.0% to 5.0% 20,850,000 415,000 20,435,000 

Add: Bond premiums 4,161,166 206,763 3,954,403 

Long-term water revenue bond 

liabilities $134,511,166 - 5,046,763 129,464,403 
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One Year One Year 

670,000 9,780,000 

2,910,000 72,280,000 

250,000 3,935,000 

520,000 11,675,000 

250,000 2,805,000 

435,000 20,000,000 

3,954,403 

5,035,000 124,429,403 
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(6) Water Revenue Bonds, Continued 

The following is a schedule of the future minimum payments under the water revenue bonds as 
of December 31, 2025: 

Principal 

2026 $ 5,235,000 
2027 5,440,000 
2028 5,670,000 
2029 5,890,000 
2030 6,115,000 

2031 - 2035 34,260,000 
2036 - 2040 34,310,000 
2041 - 2045 17,905,000 
2046 - 2050 5,650,000 

$ 120,475,000 

(7) Pension Plan 

(a) Plan Description and Benefits Provided 
Employees' Retirement System 

Interest Total 

6,396,868 11,631,868 
6,115,327 11,555,327 
5,873,495 11,543,495 
5,521,856 11,411,856 
5,220,571 11,335,571 

20,922,668 55,182,668 
11,515,603 45,825,603 
2,721,486 20,626,486 

582,400 6,232,400 

64,870,274 185,345,274 

The Authority participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System 
(the System). This is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The 
System provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net 
position of the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Fund (the 
Fund), which was established to hold all assets and record changes in fiduciary net position 
allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee 
of the Fund and is the administrative head of the System. System benefits are established 
under the provision of the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL). 
Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the election is irrevocable. The 
New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual 
relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed 
for future members only by enactment of a State statute. The Authority also participates 
in the Public Employees Group Life Insurance Plan (GLIP), which provides death benefits 
in the form of life insurance. GLIP amounts are appointed to and included in ERS. The 
System is included in the States' s financial report as a pension trust fund. That report 
including information with regard to benefits provided may be found at 
www.osc.state.ny.us/retirement/financial-statements-and-supplementary-information. 
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(7) Pension Plan. Continued 

(a) Plan Description and Benefits Provided. Continued 
The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who 

contribute 3% of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees who 
joined on or after January 1, 2010 who generally contribute 3% to 6% percent of their 
salary for their entire length of service. The Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially 
determined rates expressly used in computing the employers' contributions based on 
salaries paid during the System's fiscal year ending March 31. 

(b) Pension Liability. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the Pension 

At December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority reported the following for its proportionate 
share of the System. The net pension System was measured as of March 31, 2025 and 
2024, respectively. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension System 
was determined by an actuarial valuation. The Authority's proportionate share of the net 
pension System was based on a projection of the Authority's long-term share of 
contributions to the System relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
members, actuarially determined. This information was provided by the System in reports 
provided to the Authority. 

Measurement date 
Net pension liability 

Authority's proportion of the System's net 
pension liability 

Changes in proportionate share from prior year 

$ 

2025 

3/31/2025 
9,985,186 

0.0582372% 
0.0010713 

2024 

3/31/2024 
8,417,137 

0.0571659% 
(0.0023836) 

For the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority recognized pension expense 
of $2,157,844 and $3,610,109, respectively, for the System in the statements of revenue, 
expenses and changes in net position. At December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority's 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the 
pension from the following sources: 
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(7) Pension Plan, Continued 

(b) Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the Pension, Continued 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual 

investment earnings on pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between the 

Authority's contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions 

Authority's contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 

Total 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual 

investment earnings on pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between the 

Authority's contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions 

Authority's contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 

Total 

2025 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 2,478,390 
418,759 

783,410 

216,027 

2,374,896 

$ 6,271,482 

2024 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 2,711,153 
3,182,331 

149,292 

2,101,063 

$ 8,143,839 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

116,907 

164,255 

281,162 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

229,513 

4,111,727 

297,829 

4,639,069 

Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a change 
of the net pension System in the year ending December 31, 2026. Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will 
be recognized in the pension expense as follows: 
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(7) Pension Plan. Continued 

(b) Pension Liability. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the Pension, Continued 

Year ending 

2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 

(c) Actuarial Assumptions 

$ 

$ 

1,753,830 
2,559,211 
(829,903) 
13?.?86 

3.61\424 

The total pension liability at March 31, 2025 was determined using a roll forward procedure 
to advance the liability calculated using system assumptions and member demographics 
from the actuarial valuation completed as of April 1, 2024. Economic assumptions used 
in the April 1, 2024 actuarial valuation include: 

Actuarial valuation date 

Measurement date 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 
(net of investment expense, 
including inflation) 

Cost-of-living adjustments 

April 1, 2024 

March 31, 2025 

2.9% 

4.3% 

5.9% 

1.5% 

To set the long-term rate of return on pension plan investments, consideration was given to a 
building-block method using best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates at return 
( expected return, net of investment expenses and inflation) for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate ofreturn by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. 

Demographic assumptions used in the April 1, 2024 actuarial valuation are based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study completed April 1, 2020. Demographic assumptions are 
primarily based on System experience over the period April 1, 2015 - March 31, 2020. 
Annuitant mortality rates are adjusted to incorporate mortality improvements under the 
Society of Actuaries' Scale MP-2021. 
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(7) Pension Plan. Continued 

(c) Actuarial Assumptions, Continued 
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 

class are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return * 

Domestic equity 25% 3.54% 
International equity 14% 6.57% 
Private equity 15% 7.25% 
Real estate 12% 4.95% 
Opportunistic/ ARS portfolio 3% 5.25% 
Credit 4% 5.40% 
Real assets 4% 5.55% 
Fixed income 22% 2.00% 
Cash 1% 0.25% 

100% 

*The real rate ofreturn is net of the long-term inflation assumption of 2.9%. 

(d) Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 5.9%. The projection of 

cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based upon 
those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long­
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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,(7) Pension Plan, Continued 

(e) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset/Liability to the Discount Rate· 
The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension asset/(liability) 

calculated using the current discount rate of 5.9%, as well as what the Authority's 
proportionate share of the net pension asset/(liability) would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower 4.9% or I-percentage point higher 6.9% 
than the current rate: 

1% 
Decrease 

4.9% 
Authority's proportionate share of the net· 

pension asset (liability) $ 28,898.386 

(f) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Current 
Assumption 

5.9% 

1% 
Increase 

6.9% 

9.985,186 (5.807,348) 

The components of the collective net pension liability of all participating employers as of 
March 31, 2025, were as follows: 

Employers' total pension liability 
Fiduciary net position 

Employers' net pension liability 

Ratio of fiduciary net position to the 
Employers' total pension liability 

(g) Contributions to the Pension Plan 

(Dollars in Millions) 

$ (247,600) 
230,454 

$ 0 7.146) 

93.08% 

Employer contributions are paid annually based on the System's fiscal year which ends on 
March 3 pt. Retirement contributions as of December 31, 2025 and 2024 represent the 
projected employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2025 through March 31, 2026 
and through April 1, 2024 through March 31, 2025, respectively, based on paid employee 
wages multiplied by the employer's contribution rate, by tier. Retirement contributions 
paid to the System for the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024 were $3,075,250 and 
$2,670,162, respectively. 
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(8) Other Postemployment Benefits 

(a) Plan Description and Benefits 
The Authority provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. The Authority 

administers the Retirement Benefits Plan (the Retirement Plan) as a single-employer 
defined benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB). In general, the Authority 
provides health care benefits for those retired personnel who are eligible for a pension 
through the System. The Retirement Plan can be amended by action of the Authority 
subject to applicable collective bargaining and employment agreements. 

The obligations of the Retirement Plan are established by action of the Authority pursuant to 
applicable collective bargaining and employment agreements. The required premium 
contribution rates of retirees range from 0% to 10%, depending on when the employee 
was hired. The Authority will pay its portion of the premium for the retiree and spouse 
for the lifetime of the retiree. The costs of administering the Retirement Plan are paid by 
the Authority. The Authority currently contributes enough money to the Retirement Plan 
to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis to cover annual premiums. 

(b) Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
At December 31, 2025 and 2024, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

2025 2024 

Retired participants 166 161 
Active participants 147 160 

Total participants 313 321 

(c) Total OPEB Liability 
The Authority's total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2025 and 2024 of $57,958,102 and 

$50,917,403, respectively were measured as of December 31, 2025 and 2024, 
respectively, and was determined by actuarial valuations as of January 1, 2025 and January 
1, 2023, respectively. 

( d) Actuarial Methods and Other Inputs 
The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2025 actuarial valuation was determined using the 

following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 

Discount Rate 

Cost Method 

4.75% 

4.83% The discount rate was based on the index provided 
by Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation based on the 
20 year AA municipal bond rate as of December 1, 2025. 

Entry Age Normal (Percent of Salary) 
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-
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

{8) Other Postemployment Benefits, Continued 

{d) Actuarial Methods and Other Inputs, Continued 
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 13.90% for 2025, decreasing to an ultimate rate of9.00% 

Employer Funding Policy Pay-as-you-go cash basis 

Census Data As of January 1, 2025 

Mortality Retired and Active Pub-2010 General Headcount Weighted 
Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2021. 

{e) Changes in the Total OPEB Liabilitv 
2025 2024 

Total OPEB liability at beginning of year $ 50,917,403 41,657,111 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 1,501,619 1,594,520 
Interest 2,743,449 2,034,130 
Differences between expected and actual experience 7,219,258 
Changes of assumptions (1,252,544) 7,577,360 
Benefit payments {3,171,083) {1,945,718) 

Total changes 7,040,699 9,260,292 

Total OPEB liability at of end of year $ 572958,102 50,917,403 

(f) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the 

Authority's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that 
is I-percentage point lower or I-percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

2025 
Current 

1% Discount 1% 
Decrease Rate Increase 

Total OPEB liability $ 64A32,042 57,958,102 52A45,392 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(8) Other Postemployment Benefits, Continued 

(f) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate, Continued 
2024 

Total OPEB liability 

1% 
Decrease 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
1% 

Increase 

$ 56,608,252 50,917.403 46,056,931 

(g) Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the 

Authority's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend 
rates that are I-percentage point lower or I-percentage point higher than the current 
healthcare cost trend rate: 

1% 
Decrease 

2025 
Current 
Trend 
Rate 

1% 
Increase 

Total OPEB liability $ 51,024.287 57,958.102 66,439.910 

1% 
Decrease 

2024 
Current 
Trend 
Rate 

1% 
Increase 

Total OPEB liability $442,281,405 50,917,403 59,104.141 

(h) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB 

For the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority recognized OPEB expense 
of $2,017,395 and $(688,360), respectively. At December 31, 2025, the Authority 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Total 
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2025 
Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

$ 7,568,925 8,633,917 
7,438,865 5,200,851 

$ 15,007.790 13,834.768 



DRAFT
MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(8) Other Postemployment Benefits, Continued 

(h) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPES. Continued 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Total 

"'024 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 3,861,012 
11,868,315 

$ 15,729,327 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

12,654,907 
10.095,785 

22,750.692 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year ending 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 

(9) Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Commitments 

$ (581,202) 
(500,322) 
618,875 

1,340,742 
294,929 

$ 1,173.022 

The Authority has entered into agreements with various water districts, towns and villages 
whereby the Authority obtains the use of the water facilities and agrees to provide water 
services to the residents of such districts. Any improvements to these facilities are 
capitalized by the Authority. 

The Authority has an "Amended and Restated Water Development and Supply Agreement" 
with Genesee County to finance, construct, own, operate and supply water service in and 
for that County of Genesee. Genesee County is continuing to develop and increase the 
amount of water supplied by the Authority to and within Genesee County in multiple 
phases. 

The first Phase of the project involved the construction of approximately thirty-five miles of 
water mains financed with the proceeds of the 2001 Series Water Revenue Bonds and 
capital grants from state and federal agencies (see further disclosure in note 6). 

Phase II includes the construction of new transmission mains, new pump stations, and 
improvement to an existing pump station in Monroe County with a goal of providing 
approximately an additional 2.0 million gallons of water per day to Genesee County. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(9) Commitments and Contingencies, Continued 

(a) Commitments, Continued 
Phase II is currently in construction and a 2026 service date is anticipated. 

The next phases of the project are currently in planning and design. 

The Authority has entered into an agreement in 2010 whereby Monroe County is to provide 
certain public security and safety services to the Authority through December 31, 2029. 
$829,847 is due from the Authority to the County for the year ending December 31, 2026. 
There are no other amounts due for this project. 

The Authority expensed $829,847 under this agreement during each of the years ended 
December 31, 2025 and 2024. 

The Authority has entered into a water exchange agreement with the City. A stipulation of 
the agreement required the City to replace its Rush Reservoir with covered storage of 
water. The Authority is required to pay for 54% of the costs of the project, not to exceed 
a total project cost of $9,000,000. The Authority's maximum commitment is $4,860,000 
over 20 years. 

• Amounts that are due under this agreement are summarized as follows for the years ended 
December 31 : 

Year 
ending 

2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 - 2032 

$ 243,000 
243,000 
243,000 
243,000 
243,000 
486,000 

$ 1,701.000 

The Authority expensed $243,000 under this agreement during each of the years ended 
December 31, 2025 and 2024. 

(b) Contingencies 
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; life and health of 
employees; and natural disasters. The Authority has various insurance policies with third­
party carriers related to property protection, casualty and statutory and non-statutory 
employee protection. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

(9) Commitments and Contingencies, Continued 

(b) Contingencies, Continued 
The Authority is subject to litigation in the ordinary conduct of its affairs. Management does 

not believe, however, that such litigation, individually or in the aggregate, is likely to have 
a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Authority. 

(10) Self-Insured Workers' Compensation 

The Authority is self-insured for workers' compensation claims. The Authority transfers its risk 
of loss thorough the purchase of commercial insurance for workers' compensation benefits up 
to a maximum aggregate amount of $5,000,000 per occurrence, subject to a deductible of 
$500,000 per occurrence. Claim expenses and liabilities are reported when it is probable that 
a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. At December 
31, 2025 and 2024, there were no liabilities recorded for workers' compensation claims. 

(11) Related Party Transactions 

The Authority has a contract with the County to supply the Authority with power and natural gas. 
The contract states that the Authority will purchase power and gas from the County at market 
value, plus a 0.6% service fee each year through August 31, 2030. For the years ended 
December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Authority paid $6,741,626 and $3,870,812, respectively, to 
the County under the terms of this agreement. 

(12) Subsequent Events 

The Authority has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the report which is the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 

(13) Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Implemented 

GASB has issued the following pronouncements which will be implemented in the years required. 
The effects of the implementation of these pronouncements are not known at this time. 

Statement No. 103 - Financial Reporting Model Improvements. Effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2025. 

Statement No. 104 - Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets. Effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2025. 

Statement No. 105 - Subsequent Events. Effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2026. 
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Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Changes in the Authority's 

Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
December 31, 2025 

Total OPEB liability 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 

Service cost $ 1,501,619 1,594,520 1,610,728 1,929,305 3,073,473 1,474,068 1,866,827 2,047,877 

Interest 2,743,449 2,034,130 1,344,899 1,991,682 1,648,145 1,957,629 1,918,395 2,277,994 
Plan change 818,883 
Changes of benefit terms 421,956 
Differences between expected 

and actual experience 7,219,258 (18,445,189) 11,489,334 1,081,653 (5,253,944) (8,774,311) 
Changes of assumptions (1,252,544) 7,577,360 911,142 (25,383,557) 11,312,724 5,879,065 (4,270,515) 2,086,463 
Benefit payments (3,171,083) (1,945,718) (1,884,690) (2,372,560) (1,925,674) (2,001,367) (2,010,623) (1,798,585) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 7,040,699 9,260,292 (15,644,227) (23,835,130) 25,598,002 8,391,048 (7,749,860) (3,738,606) 
Total OPEB liability- beginning 50,917,403 41,657,111 57,301,338 81,136,468 55,538,466 47,147,418 54,894,278 58,632,884 

Total OPEB liability- ending $ 57,958,102 50,917,403 41,657,111 57,301,338 81,136,468 55,538,466 47,144,418 54,894,278 

Covered payroll $ 13,565,804 13,939,519 13,468,134 13,695,633 13,296,731 14,641,528 17,097,419 16,478,853 

Total OPEB liability as a 
percentage of covered payroll 427.24% 365.27% 309.30% 418.39% 610.20% 379.32% 275.74% 333.12% 

Notes to schedule: 

Changes of assumptions - Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate each period. The following are the 
discount rates used in each actuarial valuation: 

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 

4.83% 4.08% 3.26% 3.65% 2.13% 3.26% 4.11% 3.44% 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is complied, the Authority 
presents information for those years for which information is available. 

There are no assets accumulated in a trust meets the criteria in GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 4. 
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2025 

Authority's proportion of the 
net pension asset/liability 0.0582372% 

Authority's proportionate 
share of the net 
pension asset/(liability) $ (9,985, l 86) 

Authority's covered payroll $ 19,036,459 

Authority's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
asset/liability as a percentage 
of its covered payroll 52.45% 

Plan fiduciary net position 
as a percentage of the 
total pension asset/liability 93.08% 

MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORJTY 
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Monroe, New York) 

Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset/Liability 

December 31, 2025 

NYSERS Pension Plan 

2024 2023 2022 202] 2020 2019 

0.057.1659'% 0.0595495°/o 0.0607491% 0.0584392% 0.0617040% 0.0577902% 

(8,417,137) (12,769,819) 4,965,984 (58,190) (] 6,339,575) (4,094,611) 

l 8,259,745 17,317,995 17,178,050 17,023,526 16,860,861 16,617,975 

46.10% 73.74?,'o 28.91% 0.34% 96.91°,o 24.64% 

93.88% 90.78% 103.65% 99.95'% 86.39~'0 96.27%, 
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2018 2017 2016 

0.0583864% 0.0580000% 0.0600000% 

(l,884,391) (5,420,629) (9,693,114) 

14,993,931 14,584,555 14,651,331 

12.57% 37.17% 66.16% 

98.29% 94.70% 90.70% 
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2025 

Contractually required 
contribution $ 3,075,250 

Contributions in relation 
to the contractually 
required contribution 3,075,250 

Contribution deficiency 
(excess) $ 

Authority's covered 
payroll $ 19,036,459 

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 
payroll 16.15% 

MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Monroe, New York) 

Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of the Authority's Pension Contributions 

December 31, 2025 

NYSERS Pension Plan 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 

2,670,162 2,203,967 2,176,291 2,669,138 2,431,247 2,238,932 

2,670,162 2,203,967 2,176,291 2,669,138 2,431,247 2,238,932 

18,259,745 17,317,995 17,178,050 17,023,526 16,860,861 16,617,975 

]4.62% 12.73% 12.67% 15.68% 14.42% 13.47% 
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2018 2017 2016 

2,251,223 2,216,347 2,628,166 

2,251,223 2,216,347 2,628,166 

14,993,931 14,584,555 14,651,331 

15.01% 15.20% 17.94% 



DRAFTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Board of Directors 
Monroe County Water Authority: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
Monroe County Water Authority (the Authority), a discretely presented component unit of the County 
of Monroe, New York, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2025, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated , 2026. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the Authority's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Williamsville, New York 
, 2026 

46 



DRAFTINDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INVESTMENT COMPLIANCE 
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE INVESTMENT GUIDELINES 

The Board of Directors 
Monroe County Water Authority: 

Report on Investment Compliance 

Opinion on Investment Compliance 

We have audited the Monroe County Water Authority's (the Authority), a discretely presented 
component unit of the County of Monroe, New York, compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in Section 2925(3)(£) of the New York State Public 
Authorities Law (the investment guidelines) that could have a direct and material effect on its 
investments for the year ended December 31, 2025. 

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its investments for the 
year ended December 31, 2025. 

Basis for Opinion on Investment Compliance 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit 
requirements of the investment guidelines. Our responsibilities under those standards and the 
investment guidelines are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance with 
the investment guidelines. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements 
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
Authority's investments. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Authority's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and the investment guidelines, will always 
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user of the report on compliance about the Authority's compliance with the requirements of the 
investment guidelines as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and the 
investment guidelines, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the Authority's compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Authority's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the investment guidelines, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority's internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses 
in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of the investment guidelines on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of investment guidelines will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance ,vith a type of compliance requirement of the 
investment guidelines that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the investment guidelines. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Williamsville, New York 
, 2026 
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DRAFTREPORT TO THE BOARD 

, 2026 

The Board of Directors 
Monroe County Water Authority 

Dear Board Members: 

We have audited the financial statements of the Monroe County Water Authority (the 
Authority) a discretely presented component unit of the County of Monroe, New York, for the year 
ended December 31, 2025. Professional standards require that we provide you with information 
about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to 
our audit. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the Authority are described in note 2 to the financial 
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was 
not changed during the year ended December 31, 2025. We noted no transactions entered into by 
the Authority during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All 
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current 
events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future 
events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

For the year ended December 31, 2025, we evaluated the key factors and assumptions used 
by management in determining accounting estimates and were reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 
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The Board of Directors 
Monroe County Water Authority 
Page 2 

Sensitive Disclosures 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing 
our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely adjustments identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this report, professional standards define a disagreement with management 
as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors' report. We are pleased to report 
that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included m the 
management representation letter. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Authority's financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditors' opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 
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The Board of Directors 
Monroe County Water Authority 
Page 3 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles 
and auditing standards, with management prior to retention as the Authority's auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses 
were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that 
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquires of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

* * * * * 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of 
the Monroe County Water Authority and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

EFPR GROUP, CPAs, PLLC 



DfEFPRGROUP, CPAs2 
Certified Public Accountants 

6390 Main Street, Suite 200 

Williamsville. New York 14221 

P 71 6.634.0700 

TF 800.546.7556 

W EFPRadvisory.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INVESTMENT COMPLIANCE 
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE INVESTMENT GUIDELINES 

The Board of Directors 
Monroe County Water Authority: 

Report on Investment Compliance 

Opinion on Investment Compliance 

We have audited the Monroe County Water Authority's (the Authority), a discretely presented 
component unit of the County of Monroe, New York, compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in Section 2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public 
Authorities Law (the investment guidelines) that could have a direct and material effect on its 
investments for the year ended December 31, 2025. 

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its investments for the 
year ended December 31, 2025. 

Basis f@t Opinion on ha~estment Compliance 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit 
requirements of the investment guidelines. Our responsibilities under those standards and the 
investment guidelines are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance with 
the investment guidelines. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements 
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
Authority's investments. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, \Vhether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Authority"s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS, Go ernment Auditing Standara and the investment guidelines, will always 
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user of the report on compliance about the Authority's compliance with the requirements of the 
investment guidelines as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Govemment Auditintr Standards and the 
investment guidelines, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the Authority's compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Authority's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the investment guidelines, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority's internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses 
in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of the investment guidelines on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of investment guidelines will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of the 
investment guidelines that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with go\:ernance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that \Ve consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the investment guidelines. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Williamsville, New York 
, 2026 
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~ Monroe County Water Authority 
Memorandum 

To: MCWA Audit Committee Members 

Date: 

From: 

January 30, 2026 () r[\_, 
Amy A. Molinari, Director of Finance and Business Services1]/'_ • _. 

Subject: 2025 Investment Report Copies: N. Nace 
L. Magguilli 
L. Rawlins 
A. Mammino 

In accordance with the Authority's Annual Statement of Investment Policy, readopted April 2025, I 
respectfully submit the 2025 Investment Report for your review. Additionally, under Article XIV of 
the MCWA Annual statement of Investment Policy, the Authority has sufficient funds to meet the 
next six months of obligations, which include any debt service payments and operating expenses. 

We are in compliance with the attached report. 

Should you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me. 

Attachment 



Monroe County Water Authority 
Annual Investment Report 

For the Period Ending 
DECEMBER 31, 2025 

DRAFT 



MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
DECEMBER 31, 2025 INVESTMENT REPORT 

MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY HELD FUNDS 

Cash on Hand Monev Market/CDs/ 
Beginning Balance: As of 1/1/25 

Water Revenue* $ 489,962 $ 
Operations & Maintenance* 6,460,974 
General Fund 
Renewal & Replacement 
Debt Service 
OPEB Fund 
Rate Stabilzation Fund 

Total $ 6,950,936 $ 

Ending Balance: As of 12/31/25 
Water Revenue* $ 375,181 $ 
Operations & Maintenance* 5,786,546 
General Fund 
Renewal & Replacement 
Debt Service 
OPEB Fund 
PFAS 
Rate Stabilzation Fund 

Total $ 6,161,727 $ 

ST-Bills 

7,407,069 
5,233,805 

20,548,404 
32,044,134 

3,644,677 
37,485,581 
11,750,000 

118,113,670 

8,407,046 
4,825,767 

19,432,042 
31,758,834 

4,405,454 
39,485,581 

2,927,688 
13,750,000 

124,992,412 

DECEMBER DECEMBER 
Interest Received: 2025 2024 

Money Market/Cd's/UST-Bills $ 4,909,983 $ 4,922,837 
Interest Accrued - 1,902,912 1,990,032 

* Earnings Credit 

TRUSTEE HELD FU OS 
Beginning Balance: As of 1/1/25 

Debt Service $ 8,880 
Debt Service Reserve* 1,565,042 
Capital Improvement Fund* 10,561,115 
New Construction Fund* 5,409,833 

Ending Balance: As of 12/31/25 
Debt Service $ 7,900 
Debt Service Reserve* 1,613,043 
Capital Improvement Fund* 8,716,916 
New Construction Fund* 5,667,074 

Accrued interest $ 243,557 
Interest Earned 2025 779,301 



CASH RECEIPTS 
Cash Balance Jan 1 
Investment Liquidations 
Interest Received 
Transfer from Other Funds 

Total 

CASH DISBURSEMENTS 
Property Additions 
Interest to Bondholders 
Bond Maturities & Purchases 
Investment Purchases 
Transfers to Other Funds 
Cash Balance Dec 31, 2025 
Total 

Investments at Dec 31 
Investments (at cost) 
Accrued Interest 

Total 

Cash & Investment Balance at 1/1/25 

Cash & Investment Balance at 12/31/25 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

BANK OF NEW YORK 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TRUSTEE FUNDS 

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025 

Capital New 
Debt Service Debt Service Improvement Construction 

Reserve Funds 

27,107 $ 
912,385 

48,001 

987,493 $ 

- $ 

932,970 

54,523 
987,493 $ 

1,558,520 $ 
850 

1,559,370 $ 

1,565,042 $ 

1,613,043 $ 

Funds 

40 
2,398,541 

7,021 
11,664,203 
14,069,805 

6,645,077 
5,035,000 
2,389,728 

14,069,805 

7,900 

7,900 

8,880 

7,900 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fund 

- $ 
22,808,620 

467,031 
1,740,500 

25,016,151 $ 

4,080,062 $ 

20,936,089 

25,016,151 $ 

8,716,916 $ 
76,094 

8,793,010 $ 

10,561,115 $ 

8,716,916 $ 

Fund 

7,678,899 
257,248 

7,936,147 

7,936,147 

7,936,147 

5,667,074 
166,613 

5,833,687 

5,409,833 

5,667,074 



Monroe County Water Authority 

Trustee Investments 

As of December 31, 2025 
(PREMIUM) 

PURCHASE MATURITY DAYSTO FACE PURCHASE VALUE• DISCOUNT ACCRUED 
FUND TYPE DATE DATE MATURITY VALUE PRICE 12/31/2025 YIELD AMORT INTERESI 

2012 DSR T-BILLS 12/12/25 09/03/26 246 $ 482,000.00 $ 470,151-27 $ 471,015.22 3.42% $ 850.00 
$ 482,000.00 $ 470,151.27 $ 471,015.22 

average days to maturity 246 weighted average yield 3.42% 

2013 DSR T-BONDSLUG 12/05/23 10/01/42 6118 $ I ,088,369.00 $ 1,088,369.00 $ 1,088,369.00 2.70% 
$ 1,088,369.00 $ 1,088,369.00 $ I ,088,369.00 

average days to maturity 6118 weighted average yield 2.70% 

CAP IMPROVE T-BlLLS 04/17/25 01/22/26 22 $ 672,000.00 $ 652,060.27 $ 670,669 44 3.93% 18,373.00 
T-BILLS 07/11/25 02/19/26 50 953,000.00 929,770.49 948,473.25 4.03% 18,021.00 
T-BILLS 08/11/25 03/19/26 78 732,000.00 714,793.32 726,553.92 3.63% 11,1 06.00 
T-BILLS 09/17/25 04/16/26 !06 930,000.00 9!0,633.19 920,532.60 3.94% 9,638.00 
T-BILLS I0/20/25 05/14/26 134 1,570,000,00 1,538,444.09 1,549,888.30 3.58% I 1,029.00 
T-BILLS 11/13/25 06/11/26 162 1,696,000,00 1,661,318.92 1,669,762.88 3.58% 7,927.00 

$ 6,553,000.00 $ 6,407,020.28 $ 6,485,880.39 
average days to maturity 92 weighted average yield 3.74% 

NEW CONST T-BILLS 02/20/25 01/22/26 22 3,525,000 00 3,394,600.85 3,518,020.50 4.12% 121,861.00 
T-BILLS 07/08/25 06/11/26 162 $ 2,355,000.00 $ 2,269,055.19 $ 2,318,568.15 4.03% 44,752.00 

$ 5,880,000.00 $ 5,663,656.04 $ 5,836,588.65 
average days to maturity 162 weighted average yield 4.08% 

TOTAL 
% lnT-Bills 92.23% TOTALS $ 14,003,369.00 $ 13,629,196.59 $ 13,881,853.26 $ $ 243,557.00 
¾in T-Bonds 7.77% 

!00.00% 
Portfolio average days 1655 Portfolio weighted average yield 3.79% 



Monroe County Water Authority • 
Local Investments 

As of December 31, 2025 

PURCHASE MATURITY DAYSTO FACE PURCHASE ACCRUED 

FUND TYPE DATE DATE MATURITY VALUE PRICE VALUE* YIELD INTEREST 

OPEB 
T-BILL 02/10/25 01/22/26 22 $ 3,000,000.00 $ 2,883,801.67 $ 2,994,060.00 4.21% 108,808.92 

T-BILL 03/10/25 01/22/26 22 3,000,000.00 2,898,637.50 2,993,182.07 3.98% 91,481.25 

T-BILL 08/19/25 02/12/26 43 1,700,000.00 1,667,235.33 1,693,047.00 4.05% 24,804.74 

T-BILL 03/07/25 02/19/26 50 3,000,000.00 2,889,047.08 2,985,750.00 3.97% 93,150.56 

T-BILL 07/23/25 03/19/26 78 2,000,000.00 1,947,632.44 1,983,253.92 4.08% 23,951.97 

T-BILL 04/23/25 04/16/26 106 3,100,000.00 2,982,885.27 3,065,650.71 3.97% 82,439.28 

T-BILL 05/15/25 05/14/26 134 3,000,000.00 2,881,366.33 2,961,570.00 4.08% 74,927.10 

T-BILL 06/17/25 06/11/26 162 2,483,000.00 2,386,630.08 2,441,198.51 4.07% 51,272.04 

T-BILL 07/22/25 07/09/26 190 3,000,000.00 2,886,186.67 2,946,720.00 4.05% 52,379.46 

T-BILL 08/08/25 08/06/26 218 3,000,000.00 2,887,107.00 2,938,710.00 3.89% 45,095.00 

T-BILL 09/12/25 09/03/26 246 2,600,000.00 2,510,448.20 2,538,370.25 3.62% 27,670.50 

T-BILL 10/06/25 10/01/26 274 2,960,000.00 2,856,932.80 2,882,105.96 3.62% 24,621.80 

T-BILL 11/12/25 10/01/26 274 2,700,000.00 2,615,672.78 2,628,948.00 3.61% 12,792.43 

T-BILL 11/17/25 10/29/26 302 2,380,000.00 2,299,207.46 2,309,715.16 3.67% 10,974.50 

T-BILL 12/10/25 11/27/26 331 2,950,000.00 2,850,198.22 2,859,553.00 3.60% 5,954.13 

$ 40,873,000.00 $ 39,442,988.83 $ 40,221,834.59 

average days to maturity 163 weighted average yield 3.90% 

R&R 
T-BILL 01/29/25 01/22/26 22 $ 2,500,000.00 $ 2,402,295.83 $ 2,495,050.00 4.10% 91,701.12 

T-BILL 08/26/25 02/05/26 36 2,000,000.00 1,964,592.78 1,993,300.00 4.03% 27,586.94 

T-BILL 02/21/25 02/19/26 50 1,500,000.00 1,439,605.88 1,492,022.39 4.18% 52,073.81 

T-BILL 04/30/25 02/19/26 50 2,500,000.00 2,422,767.36 2,486,703.98 3.91% 64,143.45 

T-BILL 10/23/25 03/05/26 64 1,500,000.00 1,479,750.75 1,490,408.25 3.75% 10,505.25 

T-BILL 03/21/25 03/19/26 78 1,200,000.00 1,153,415.00 1,191,072.00 4.10% 36,477.15 
T-BILL 10/21/25 04/02/26 92 1,500,000.00 1,475,210.42 1,486,680.00 3.76% 10,797.68 

T-BILL 04/29/25 04/16/26 106 1,500,000.00 1,445,000.00 1,484,730.00 3.91% 38,437.50 

T-BILL 10/23/25 04/23/26 113 1,500,000.00 1,472,358.75 1,482,990.00 3.76% 10,479.72 

T-BILL 11/10/25 05/07/26 127 2,000,000.00 1,963,905.56 1,975,460.00 3.76% 10,341.78 

T-BILL 05/20/25 05/14/26 134 2,000,000.00 1,921,917.50 1,974,380.00 4.09% 48,937.50 

T-BILL 12/15/25 06/04/26 155 1,500,000.00 1,475,461.50 1,477,901.00 3.55% 2,296.00 

T-BILL 07/18/25 06/11/26 162 1,000,000.00 964,494.00 983,164.93 4.06% 17,969.50 

T-BILL 12/17/25 06/18/26 169 2,000,000.00 1,964,914.44 1,967,540.00 3.50% 2,684.08 

T-BILL 08/25/25 07/09/26 190 2,000,000.00 1,934,244.67 1,961,855.14 3.87% 26,467.84 



PURCHASE MATURITY DAYSTO FACE PURCHASE ACCRUED 
FUND TYPE DATE DATE MATURITY VALUE PRICE VALUE* YIELD INTEREST 

R&RCONTD T-BILL 08/28/25 08/06/26 218 1,500,000.00 1,447,406.67 1,469,355.00 3.83% 19,166.25 

T-BILL 09/22/25 09/03/26 246 2,000,000.00 1,934,067.78 1,954,420.00 3.56% 18,865.44 

T-BILL 10/10/25 10/01/26 274 1,500,000.00 1,448,350.33 1,461,810.00 3.62% 10,300.68 
T-BILL 12/01/25 11/27 /26 331 1,500,000.00 1,448,331.88 1,452,768.75 3.57% 4,293.60 

$ 32,700,000.00 $ 31,758,091.10 $ 32,281,611.43 
average days to maturity 138 weighted average yield 3.84% 

PFAS PAYMENT T-BILL 12/22/2025 09/03/26 246 $ 2,200,000.00 $ 2,148,107.50 $ 2,149,862.00 3.44% 3,052.45 

T-BILL 11/10/2025 10/29/26 302 770,000.00 743,717.48 748,363.00 3.62% 1,831.50 

$ 2,970,000.00 $ 2,891,824.98 $ 2,898,225.00 
average days to maturity 274 weighted average yield 3.49% 

DEBTSERV T-BILL 08/05/25 01/02/26 2 $ 481,000.00 $ 473,029.43 $ 480,948.03 4.10% 7,867.72 

T-BILL 09/02/25 01/02/26 2 960,000.00 947,227.41 959,896.28 4.03% 12,562.80 

T-BILL 11/02/25 01/02/26 2 1,000,000.00 993,646.67 999,891.96 3.89% 6,138.14 

T-BILL 11/18/25 07/09/26 190 1,050,000.00 1,026,350.50 1,031,352.00 3.60% 4,364.50 

T-BILL 12/01/25 07/09/26 190 986,000.00 965,199.78 967,194.58 3.56% 2,836.50 

$ 4,477,000.00 $ 4,405,453.79 $ 4,439,282.86 
average days to maturity 77 weighted average yield 3.80% 

RA TE STAB FUND T-BILL 07/17/25 01/08/26 8 $ 1,500,000.00 $ 1,470,096.88 $ 1,499,130.00 4.24% 28,535.29 

T-BILL 07/18/25 03/19/26 78 2,000,000.00 1,946,686.00 1,983,253.92 4.07% 36,271.00 

T-BILL 08/06/25 04/16/26 106 2,000,000.00 1,946,518.61 1,979,640.00 3.94% 31,074.33 

T-BILL 09/15/25 05/14/26 241 3,000,000.00 2,929,306.67 2,961,570.00 3.64% 31,092.98 

T-BILL 10/08/25 06/11/26 162 2,030,000.00 1,981,241.09 1,995,824.80 3.63% 15,262.17 

T-BILL I 1/02/25 07/09/26 190 2,000,000.00 1,951,433.33 1,964,480.00 3.65% 11,358.14 

T-BILL 12/04/25 08/06/26 218 1,500,000.00 1,464,730.21 1,469,355.00 3.57% 3,886.92 

$ 14,030,000.00 $ 13,690,012.79 $ 13,853,253.72 
average days to maturity 143 weighted average yield 3.80% 

GENERAL FUND T-BILL 03/13/25 01/22/26 22 $ 2,500,000.00 $ 2,415,278.13 $ 2,494,318.40 4.03% 75,577.76 

T-BILL 03/19/25 01/22/26 22 2,500,000.00 2,415,346.88 2,494,318.40 4.10% 73,695.24 

T-BILL 04/09/25 01/22/26 22 1,500,000.00 1,455,600.00 1,497,030.00 3.85% 41,009.22 

T-BILL 06/09/25 01/22/26 22 1,800,000.00 1,754,849.70 I, 795,909.24 4.12% 40,774.50 

T-BILL 09/03/25 02/12/26 43 2,000,000.00 1,965,440.00 1,991,820.00 3.96% 25,386.27 

T-BILL 02/20/25 02/19/26 50 3,000,000.00 2,878,606.00 2,984,044.78 4.18% 89,711.50 

T-BILL 03/21/25 02/19/26 50 1,700,000.00 1,638,826.21 1,690,958.71 4.03% 48,391.65 
T-BILL 03/20/25 03/19/26 78 2,000,000.00 1,921,800.67 1,983,253.92 4.04% 57,359.61 



PURCHASE MATURITY DAYSTO FACE PURCHASE ACCRUED 
FUND TYPE DATE DATE MATURITY VALUE PRICE VALUE* YIELD INTEREST 

GEN FUND CONT T-BILL 12/15/25 05/07/26 127 425,000.00 419,192.61 419,785.25 3.53% 649.76 
T-BILL 07/17/25 06/11/26 162 400,000.00 385,721.40 393,265.97 4.07% 7,247.80 

T-BILL 10/21/25 10/01/26 274 1,000,000.00 967,359.17 973,684.45 3.54% 6,717.31 

T-BILL 11/06/25 10/29/26 302 1,200,000.00 1,158,409.50 I, 166,280.00 3.63% 6,407.50 

$ 20,025,000.00 $ 19,376,430.27 $ 19,884,669.11 

* value used on the monthly statements average days to maturity 98 weighted average yield 3.99% 
$1,902,911.53 

% in T-Bills TOTALS $ 115,075,000.00 $ 111,564,801.76 $ 113,578,876.72 
100.00% 

Portfolio average days 149 weighted average yield 3.87% 



MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
LOCAL INVESTMENT MATURED HISTORY 
JANUARY 1, 2025 THRU DECEMBER 31, 2025 

SETTLEMENT MATURITY INTEREST PURCHASE MATURITY INTEREST 

BANK FUND DATE DATE YIELD AMOUNT AMOUNT RECEIVED 

Wilma/MT Debt Service 09/03/24 01/09/25 4.87% $ 983,207.11 $ 1,000,000.00 $ 16,792.89 

Key Bank Debt Service 11/04/24 01/09/25 4.51% 1,686,249.27 1,700,000.00 13,750.73 

Key Bank General Fund 07/15/24 01/09/25 5.17% 2,438,441.67 2,500,000.00 61,558.33 

Key Bank General Fund 07/18/24 01/16/25 5.17% 1,559,798.22 1,600,000.00 40,201 .78 

Wilma/MT OPEB 08/02/24 01/16/25 4.89% 2,934,313.33 3,000,000.00 65,686.67 

Key Bank General Fund 01/30/24 01/23/25 4.73% 1,910,210.11 2,000,000.00 89,789.89 

Key Bank General Fund 01/26/24 01/23/25 4.73% 1,909,250.00 2,000,000.00 90,750.00 

Key Bank R&R 02/07/24 01/23/25 4.79% 2,388,850.00 2,500,000.00 111,150.00 

Key Bank OPEB 09/13/24 02/06/25 4.72% 2,944,398.33 3,000,000.00 55,601.67 

Wilma/MT R&R 08/08/24 02/06/25 4.95% 1,951,820.56 2,000,000.00 48,179.44 

Key Bank Rate Stabilzation 10/01/24 02/13/25 4.46% 1,967,525.00 2,000,000.00 32,475.00 

Wilma/MT OPEB 05/03/24 02/15/25 5.20% 2,926,875.00 3,000,000.00 73,125.00 

Wilma/MT T-Note Interest 02/15/25 5.20% 30,000.00 

Wilma/MT R&R 06/18/24 02/20/25 5.13% 1,449,488.50 1,500,000.00 50,511.50 

Wilma/MT General Fund 03/26/24 02/20/25 5.01% 2,964,184.26 3,100,000.00 135,815.74 

Key Bank General Fund 05/20/24 02/20/25 5.19% 1,442,960.00 1,500,000.00 57,040.00 

Key Bank OPEB 03/12/24 02/20/25 4.94% 2,865,018.75 3,000,000.00 134,981.25 

Wilma/MT OPEB 09/17/24 03/06/25 4.57% 2,937,482.50 3,000,000.00 62,517.50 

Key Bank General Fund 09/06/24 03/06/25 4.63% 2,932,577.50 3,000,000.00 67,422.50 

Wilma/MT General Fund 10/25/24 03/13/25 4.48% 1,671,479.90 1,700,000.00 28,520.10 

Key Bank Rate Stabilzation 04/11/24 03/20/25 5.13% 2,955,568.42 3, I 00,000.00 144,431.58 

Key Bank General Fund 06/13/24 03/20/25 5.10% 1,923,933.33 2,000,000.00 76,066.67 

Key Bank R&R 05/16/24 03/20/25 5.13% 1,437,116.67 1,500,000.00 62,883.33 

Wilma/MT OPEB 03/21/24 03/20/25 4.95% 2,881,031.18 3,025,000.00 143,968.82 

Key Bank R&R 11/07/24 04/03/25 4.40% 1,473,846.25 1,500,000.00 26,153.75 

Wilma/MT R&R 10/18/24 04/03/25 4.42% 1,470,267.04 1,500,000.00 29,732.96 

Key Bank Rate Stabilzation 10/03/24 04/03/25 4.34% 1,957,634.44 2,000,000.00 42,365.56 

Wilma/MT R&R 09/18/24 04/17/25 4.18% 2,440,846.74 2,500,000.00 59,153.26 

Wilma/MT General Fund 09/10/24 04/17/25 4.26% 974,991.42 1,000,000.00 25,008.58 

Key Bank OPEB 04/26/24 04/17/25 5.18% 2,949,174.67 3,100,000.00 150,825.33 

Wilma/MT R&R 12/30/24 04/29/25 4.30% 2,958,528.50 3,000,000.00 41,471.50 

Key Bank R&R 11/18/24 05/08/25 4.45% 2,448,937.50 2,500,000.00 51,062.50 

Key Bank OPEB 11/05/24 05/15/25 4.27% 2,926,439.46 2,992,000.00 65,560.54 

Wilma/MT Rate Stabilzation 10/02/24 05/15/25 4.01% 1,951,575.00 2,000,000.00 48,425.00 

Wilma/MT R&R 09/24/24 05/15/25 4.06% 2,923,886.67 3,000,000.00 76,113.33 

Key Bank OPEB 06/12/24 05/15/25 5.06% 2,291,710.67 2,400,000.00 108,289.33 

Key Bank R&R 12/12/24 06/05/25 4.30% 2,939,333.33 3,000,000.00 60,666.67 

Key Bank Rate Stabilzation 10/11/24 06/12/25 4.17% 1,459,231.67 1,500,000.00 40,768.33 

Key Bank OPEB 07/12/24 06/12/25 4.89% 2,295,703.33 2,400,000.00 104,296.67 



MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
LOCAL INVESTMENT MATURED HISTORY 
JANUARY 1, 2025 THRU DECEMBER 31, 2025 

SETTLEMENT MATURITY INTEREST PURCHASE MATURITY INTEREST 

BANK FUND DATE DATE YIELD AMOUNT AMOUNT RECEIVED 

Wilma/MT R&R 06/ 14/24 06/12/25 5.04% 951,700.83 1,000,000.00 48,299.17 

Wilma/MT Debt Service 05/01/25 07/01/25 4.25% 973,097.07 980,000.00 6,902.93 

Wilma/MT Debt Service 06/04/25 07/03/25 4.23% 976,717.49 980,000.00 3,282.51 

Wilma/MT Debt Service 04/08/25 07/03/25 4.26% 792,049.78 800,000.00 7,950.22 

Wilma/MT R&R 01/09/25 07/03/25 4.26% 1,960,109.72 2,000,000.00 39,890.28 

Key Bank Rate Stabilzation 10/18/24 07/10/25 4.17% 1,455,722.92 1,500,000.00 44,277.08 

Wilma/MT Debt Service 12/04/24 07/10/25 4.24% 972,220.67 1,000,000.00 27,779.33 

Wilma/MT Debt Service 03/11/25 07/10/25 4.23% 1,035,463.36 1,050,000.00 14,536.64 

Wilma/MT OPEB 08/05/24 07/10/25 4.22% 1,635,278.31 1,700,000.00 64,721.69 

Key Bank Debt Service 02/13/25 07/10/25 4.18% 982,931.67 1,000,000.00 17,068.33 

Key Bank OPEB 02/11/25 07/17/25 4.31% 2,945,660.00 3,000,000.00 54,340.00 

Key Bank Rate Stabilzation 01/24/25 07/17/25 4.26% 1,960,173.33 2,000,000.00 39,826.67 

Wilma/MT R&R 02/24/25 07/24/25 4.28% 982,695.83 1,000,000.00 17,304.17 

Key Bank OPEB 02/19/25 07/24/25 4.31% 2,946,008.33 3,000,000.00 53,991.67 

Key Bank OPEB 09/20/24 08/07/25 3.98% 2,608,033.50 2,700,000.00 91,966.50 

Wilma/MT Rate Stabilzation 02/04/25 08/07/25 4.27% 1,957,802.67 2,000,000.00 42,197.33 

Key Bank R&R 08/23/24 08/07/25 4.42% 2,876,977.50 3,000,000.00 123,022.50 

Wilma/MT R&R 02/21/25 08/21/25 4.34% 1,468,430.58 1,500,000.00 31,569.42 

Key Bank R&R 04/10/25 08/28/25 4.17% 1,968,500.00 2,000,000.00 31,500.00 

Wilma/MT General Fund 05/02/25 09/04/25 4.24% 1,971,409.72 2,000,000.00 28,590.28 

Wilma/MT R&R 10/23/24 09/04/25 4.25% 2,892,481 .00 3,000,000.00 107,519.00 

Wilma/MT OPEB 10/08/24 09/04/25 4.19% 2,503,971.38 2,600,000.00 96,028.62 

Wilma/MT Rate Stabilzation 03/13/25 09/11/25 4.23% 2,938,029.00 3,000,000.00 61,971.00 

Key Bank R&R 03/27/25 09/25/25 4.20% 1,469,135.83 1,500,000.00 30,864.17 

Key Bank R&R 01/28/25 10/02/25 4.14% 2,917,872.50 3,000,000.00 82,127.50 

Wilma/MT Rate Stabilzation 04/07/25 10/02/25 4.07% 1,985,590.80 2,025,000.00 39,409.20 

Wilma/MT OPEB 10/09/24 10/02/25 4.19% 2,784,384.89 2,900,000.00 115,615.11 

Key Bank R&R 11/07/25 10/30/25 4.26% 1,439,310.00 1,500,000.00 60,690.00 

Wilma/MT Rate Stabilzation 05/14/25 11/06/25 4.23% 1,960,018.67 2,000,000.00 39,981.33 

Key Bank R&R 05/07/25 11/06/25 4.20% 2,448,686.11 2,500,000.00 51,313 .89 

Key Bank OPEB 07/24/25 11/12/25 4.31% 2,665,018.35 2,700,000.00 34,981.65 

Key Bank OPEB 05/16/25 11/13/25 4.22% 2,252,819.33 2,300,000.00 47,180.67 

Wilma/MT General Fund 12/04/24 11/28/25 4.25% 767,578.31 800,000.00 32,421.69 

Wilma/MT RETIREMENT 04/08/25 11/28/25 3.91% 302,377.26 310,000.00 7,622.74 

Wilma/MT RETIREMENT 06/04/25 11/28/25 4.23% 300,785.73 307,000.00 6,214.27 

Wilma/MT RETIREMENT 05/01/25 l l /28/25 4.25% 298,173.01 305,000.00 6,826.99 

Key Bank RETIREMENT 02/13/25 11/28/25 4.22% 580,512.00 600,000.00 19,488.00 

Wilma/MT RETIREMENT 03/11/25 11/28/25 3.97% 311,071.04 320,000.00 8,928.96 

Wilma/MT RETIREMENT 07/01/25 11/28/25 4.21% 301,778.44 307,000.00 5,221.56 



MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
LOCAL INVESTMENT MATURED HISTORY 
JANUARY 1, 2025 THRU DECEMBER 31, 2025 

SETTLEMENT MATURITY INTEREST PURCHASE MATURITY INTEREST 
BANK FUND DATE DATE YIELD AMOUNT AMOUNT RECEIVED 

Wilma/MT RETIREMENT 09/02/25 11/28/25 4.11% 302,033.24 305,000.00 2,966.76 
Wilma/MT RETIREMENT 08/05/25 11/28/25 4.19% 301,025.81 305,000.00 3,974.19 

Wilma/MT R&R 01/27/25 11/28/25 4.11% 2,899,604.17 3,000,000.00 100,395.83 

Wilma/MT R&R 06/06/25 12/04/25 4.27% 2,937,871.75 3,000,000.00 62,128.25 
Key Bank R&R 06/18/25 12/11/25 4.27% 1,959,617.78 2,000,000.00 40,382.22 
Wilma/MT Rate Stabilzation 06/16/25 12/1 l/25 4.27% 1,469,398.83 1,500,000.00 30,601.17 
Wilma/MT R&R 04/09/25 12/26/25 3.81% 1,459,947.38 1,500,000.00 40,052.62 
Wilma/MT OPEB 01/17/25 12/26/25 4.14% 2,886,609.92 3,000,000.00 113,390.08 

TOTALS $ 163,280,572.11 $ 167,911,000.00 $ 4,660,427.89 



BANK 

M&T Bank 

Key Bank 

MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

MONEY MARKET 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2025 

ENDING 
FUND BALANCE 12/31/25 

OPEB $ 42,592.17 

PFAS 35,862.62 
Rate Stabilization 59,987.21 

General Fund 50,972.89 

$ 189,414.89 

Interest Earned as of December 3 1, 2025 $ 2,493.65 

Weighted Average Yield 1.90% 

R&R $ 742.90 

General Fund 4,638.94 

$ 5,381.84 

Interest Earned as of December 31, 2025 $ 119.26 

Weighted Average Yield 0.50% 

Total Interest on Money Markets $ 2,612.91 



MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
LOCAL CASH & INVESTMENT 
STATEMENT OF COLLATERAL 

MCWA 
INVESTMENT 

$ 19,063,587.64 
250,000.00 
250,000.00 

$ 19,563,587.64 

$ 904,712.76 
250,000.00 
250,000.00 

$ 1,404,712.76 

$ 250,000.00 
250,000.00 

$ 500,000.00 

$ 21,468,300.40 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2025 

COLLATERAL 

TYPE 

M&T Bank 

GNMAG2SF 
FDIC Time Deposits 

FDIC Demand Deposits 

KEY BANK 
GN 23188B FB FLT 

FDIC Demand Deposits 
FDIC Time Deposits 

J.P.Morgao Chase Bank 
UST-Notes 

FDIC Time Deposits 

TOTAL 

MARKET 
VALUE 

$ 19,444,859.39 
250,000.00 
250,000.00 

$ 19,944,859.39 

$ 922,807.02 
250,000.00 
250,000.00 

$ 1,422,807.02 

$ 250,006.81 
250,000.00 

$ 500,006.81 

$ 21,867,673.22 



2025 

OPERATIO 

JANUARY 

FEBRUARY 

MARCH 

APRIL 

MAY 

JUNE 

JULY 

AUG 

SEPT 

OCT 

NOV 

DEC 

WATER REVEN 

JANUARY 

FEBRUARY 

MARCH 

APRIL 

MAY 

JUNE 

JULY 

AUG 

SEPT 

OCT 

NOV 

DEC 

$ 

MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
INVESTMENT HISTORY 

AVERAGE 
INVESTMENT INTEREST 

BALA1 CE RATE 

MARKET/M&T 

6,962,256.41 2.00 %- 2.00 % $ 

7,120,329.25 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

9,409,986.34 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

10,484,951.83 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

8,283,699.51 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

7,297,443.08 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

5,475,941.10 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

8,732,617.71 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

8,896,147.48 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

8,681,514.89 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

6,883,974.95 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

6,151,394.23 2.00 % - 1.90% 

$ 

E - MONEY MARKET f M & T BANK 

$ 4,323,668.46 2.00 % - 2.00 % $ 

4,071,803.76 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

4,617,724.22 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

4,409,140.34 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

3,568,899.15 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

4,279,100.67 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

4,756,991.73 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

4,557,543.14 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

4,855,521 .89 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

4,755,483.13 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

4,393,737.93 2.00 % - 2.00 % 

5,037,800.70 2.00 % - 1.90% 

$ 

INTEREST 
EARNED 

14,010.63 

11,165.48 

13,509.69 

15,960.18 

12,137.19 

13,654.19 

10,237.47 

17,468.22 

15,140.92 

20,100.67 

11,345.71 

11,560.39 

166,290.74 

6,300.41 

6,167.32 

8,317.09 

6,209.05 

5,076.47 

6,936.92 

6,881.08 

6,438.49 

7,433.56 

5,779.58 

7,765.17 

7,046.01 

80,351.15 



BANK CHARGES M & T 
2025 
OPERATIONS AND PAYROLL ACCOUNTS 

COST CREDITS TOTAL COST 
2,259.56 (10,094.20) (7,834.64) 

JAN 1,030.95 (7,555.79) (6,524.84) 
FEB 1,368.35 (8,351 .59) (6,983.24) 
MARCH 1,372.27 (8,266.15) (6,893.88) 
APRIL 1,372.27 (8,266.15) (6,893.88) 
MAY 1,403.96 (11,642.53) (10,238.57) 
JUNE 1,378.03 (8,042.02) (6,663.99) 
JULY 1,678.05 (10,962.47) (9,284.42) 
AUGUST 1,604.24 (8,072.85) (6,468 .61) 
SEPTEMBER 1,821.67 (9,570.31) (7,748.64) 
OCTOBER 1,408.41 (8,782.23) (7,373.82) 
NOVEMBER 1,573.33 (8,843.20) (7,269.87) 
DECEMBER* 1,709.59 (9,753.52) 90,178.40 

$ 17,721.12 $ (108,108.81) $ 
*ernings credit paid for banking fees for 2025 

M&T 
2025 
WATER REVENUE ACCOUNT 
LOCKBOX 

COST CREDITS TOTAL COST 

JAN $ 5,799.66 $ (342.48) $ 5,457.18 
FEB 6,347.16 (415.90) 5,931 .26 
MARCH 6,625.59 (370.93) 6,254.66 
APRIL 6,562.00 (439.06) 6,122.94 
MAY 6,103.53 (402.58) 5,700.95 
JUNE 6,849.30 (313.85) 6,535.45 
JULY 7,182.43 (554.05) 6,628.38 
AUGUST 5,973.63 (375.77) 5,597.86 
SEPTEMBER 6,836.73 (445.86) 6,390.87 
OCTOBER 7,197.01 (397.63) 6,799.38 
NOVEMBER 5,969.86 (334.74) 5,635.12 
DECEMBER 5,246.23 (397.42) 4,848.81 

$ 76,693.13 $ (4,790.27) $ 71,902.86 



KEY BANK 
2025 
WATER REVENUE ACCOUNT 
ELECTRONIC 

JAN 
FEB 
MARCH 
APRIL 
MAY 
JUNE 
JULY 
AUGUST 
SEPTEMBER 
OCTOBER 
NOVEMBER 
DECEMBER 

TOTAL FOR ALL SERVICES 

Trustee Services 
2025 
Bank of New York 

2010 B Series 
2017 Series 
2012 Series 
2013 Series 
2020 Series 

Auditors: 
Trustee: 
Financial Advisors: 

Banks: 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

COST 

3,544.45 
3,802.43 
3,506.75 
3,342.68 
4,310.82 
3,546.39 
3,553.03 
4,085.31 
3,580.59 
3,591.24 
4,089.07 
3,691.12 

44,643.88 

139,058.13 

2,420.00 
2,200.00 
2,000.00 
2,332.00 
2,700.00 

11,652.00 

$ 

$ 

$ 

EFPR Group, LLP 

CREDITS 

(2,010.47) 
(1,787.22) 
(2,017.74) 
(2,169.80) 
(2,102.33) 
(2,033.78) 
(2,152.86) 
(2,451 .87) 
(1,912.97) 
(1,821.66) 
(1,914.31) 
(1,884.00) 

(24,259.01) 

(137,158.09) 

The Bank of New York Mellon 

Key Bank 
M&T Bank 
JP Morgan Chase Bank 

TOTAL COST 

$ 1,533.98 
$ 2,015.21 

1,489.01 
1,172.88 
2,208.49 
1,512.61 
1,400.17 
1,633.44 
1,667.62 
1,769.58 
2,174.76 
1,807.12 

$ 20,384.87 

$ 92,287.73 



MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
ANNUAL STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 

(READOPTED APRIL 202.Sfil 

ARTICLE 1 
INTRODUCTION 

Section 2925 of the New York Public Authorities Law requires the Authority to adopt 
investment guidelines on an annual basis. The purpose of these guidelines is to identify various 
policies and procedures that enhance opportunities for a prudent and systematic investment 
policy and to organize and formalize investment related activities. The ultimate goal is to 
enhance the economic status of the Authority while protecting its funds. 

Certain of the Members of and the Director of Finance for the Authority are duly 
authorized to invest Authority monies pursuant to the New York Public Authorities Law and are 
trustees of Authority funds. Accordingly, such persons are acting as fiduciaries and will be 
subject to a prudent investor standard. 

ARTICLE2 
SCOPE 

This policy covers all moneys and other financial resources available for investment by 
the Authority on its own behalf or on behalf of any other entity or individual. It is intended that 
this policy cover all funds and investment activities under the direct control of the Authority, 
except for retirement or other employee benefit plans and deferred compensation funds. 

ARTICLE3 
OBJECTIVES 

1. The investment policies and practices of the Authority are based upon limitations 
set forth in the New York Public Authorities Law. These limitations seek to assure compliance 
with all laws governing the investment of monies under the control of the Authority. They also 
seek to protect the principal of funds entrusted to the Authority through the following objectives 
in order of importance. 

A. Safety: It is the primary duty and responsibility of the Director of Finance 
to protect, preserve and maintain cash and investments placed in his/her 
trust. Each investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses 
are avoided, whether from institution default, broker-dealer default, or 
erosion of market value of securities. The Director of Finance shall 
evaluate or cause to have evaluated each potential investment, seeking 
both quality in issuer and in underlying security or collateral. 
Diversification of the portfolio will be used as much as practicable given 
the range of permitted investments in order to reduce exposure to principal 
loss. 

B. Liquidity: An adequate percentage of the portfolio will be maintained in 
liquid short-term securities that can be converted to cash if necessary to 
meet disbursement requirements. Since all cash requirements cannot be 
anticipated, investment in securities with active secondary markets will be 
utilized. These securities will have a low sensitivity to market risk. 
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C. Yield: Yield should become a consideration only after the basic 
requirements of safety and liquidity have been met. 

D. Public Trust: All participants in the investment process shall act as 
custodians of the public trust. Investment officials shall recognize that the 
investment portfolio is subject to public review and evaluation. The 
overall program shall be designed and managed with a degree of 
professionalism that is worthy of the public trust. In a diversified portfolio 
it must be recognized that occasional measured losses are inevitable, and 
must be considered within the context of the overall portfolio's investment 
return, provided that adequate diversification has been implemented. 

ARTICLE4 
PERMITTED INVESTMENTS 

Section 1097 of the New York Public Authorities Law permits the Authority to invest 
solely in bank account deposits, which can be secured by government obligations. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section permits the Authority to contract with the holders of 
any of its bonds as to the investment of available funds. The Authority has issued various bonds 
pursuant to that certain Trust Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1991 (the "Indenture"), by and 
between the Authority and Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to Chase Lincoln First Bank, 
N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), including all amendments and supplements thereto. Section 511 
of the Indenture permits the Authority (or the Trustee on its behalf) to invest funds not required 
for immediate disbursement solely in Authorized Investments. Section 101 of the Indenture 
defines the term "Authorized Investments;" attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of such 
definition, with a summary of permitted investments for funds other than those deposited in the 
Bond Fund. 

ARTICLES 
SECURED INVESTMENTS 

The following describes the Authority's procedures regarding securing certificated and 
uncertificated securities. 

1. The Authority's security interest in certificated securities purchased outright or 
acquired by repurchase agreement or held as collateral shall be perfected by: 

A. Certificated Securities securing or transferred by a repurchase agreement 
or used as collateral to secure any other investment or cash balance shall 
be physically delivered, as far as practicable, to the Authority or its 
custodian for safekeeping throughout the term of the investment 
agreement. 

B. Payment of funds shall only be made against the delivery of physical 
securities when securities are purchased outright, or the delivery of 
collateral when a repurchase agreement or certificate of deposit is 
involved. 

C. These securities and collateral shall be physically segregated by the 
custodian or the financial institution (in the event delivery of the collateral 
to the custodian or the Authority is not practical) into an account held on 
behalf of the Authority. 
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D. The custodian shall release such securities or collateral upon the 
termination of the investment agreement as directed by the Custodial 
Agreement. 

2. The Authority's security interest in uncertificated Treasury Securities (issued in 
book entry form) purchased outright shall be perfected by: 

A. A Reserve Bank making an appropriate entry in its records of the 
securities purchased. 

B. Transfer of such securities to the Reserve Bank account of the Authority's 
custodian or financial institution and held in the name of the Authority. 

C. Notification to the Authority, and the custodian when applicable, by the 
financial institution of the purchase of subject securities with specific 
identification of such securities, the Reserve Bank account numbers 
transferred from and to, and the terms of the agreement. 

D. As provided by Parts 306 and 350 of Title 31 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations, as amended from time to time, and/or by any method 
prescribed by Sections 8-313, 8-320 or 8-321 or other Sections of Article 
8 of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of New York, as amended 
from time to time. 

3. The Authority's security interest in uncertificated Treasury Securities (issued in 
book entry form) held as collateral for repurchase agreements or other deposits shall be perfected 
by: 

• A. A Reserve Bank making an appropriate entry in its records of the 
securities transferred or pledged. 

B. Transfer of such securities to the Reserve Bank account of the custodian 
and pledged to the Authority (or to the custodian acting for the Authority). 

C. Notification to the Authority and the custodian by the financial institution 
of the transfer and pledge of subject securities with specific identification 
of such securities, the Reserve Bank account numbers transferred from 
and to, and the terms of the agreement. 

D. As provided by Parts 3 06 and 3 5 0 of Title 31 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations, as amended from time to time, and/or by any method 
prescribed by Sections 8-313, 8-320 or 8-321 or other Sections of Article 
8 of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of New York, as amended 
from time to time. 

ARTICLE6 
MONITORING 

The following describes the Authority's procedures regarding monitoring of certain types 
of investments. 

1. The Authority shall apply the following procedures for safekeeping: 

A. Certificated securities and other collateral held by the Authority's 
Custodian or other financial intermediary for safekeeping shall be 
segregated or otherwise identified as pledged to the Authority. 
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B. Book entry securities shall be secured as provided in Article 5, Sections 2 
and 3 above. 

2. The Authority shall apply the following procedures regarding audits: 

A. An independent audit of the Authority's investments shall be conducted 
annually at the direction of the Director of Finance. 

B. The audit report shall be incorporated into the annual investment report 
described in Article 14 hereof. 

3. The Authority shall comply with the following collateral requirements: 

A. Investments and cash balances shall be fully (100%) secured by collateral, 
except as provided in subsection C below. 

B. Collateral may consist of obligations described in items (i), (ii) and (iii) of 
the definition of Authorized Investments in Section 101 of the Indenture. 

C. FDIC, FSLIC, and SIPC insurance may be substituted for collateral as 
available and up to its limit. 

4. The Authority shall monitor the foregoing through the following procedures: 

A. The Authority shall monitor the recorded value of the collateral to make 
certain it is equal to the current market value, including accrued interest, 
of the collateral at the time of the initial investment, and thereafter 
monthly. For certain short-term investments the market value shall be 
monitored on a daily basis. 

B. Substitutions of collateral shall be permitted in like-kind or upon written 
agreement subject to the approval of the Treasurer, the Executive Director, 
the Director of Finance or the lawful delegate of any of them. 

ARTICLE 7 
WRITTEN CONTRACTS 

Pursuant to Section 2925 of the New York Public Authorities Law, any investments made 
by the Authority shall be evidenced by written contracts. All such contracts shall contain the 
provisions of the type described in Section 2925(3)(c) (i)- (iv). Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the Authority may by resolution authorize certain investment transactions to be made by oral 
agreement where a written contract is not practical or there is not a regular business practice of 
written contracts; in such case, the Authority shall adopt procedures to govern such investment 
or transaction. In connection with any written contract, the Authority shall furnish a copy of 
these investment guidelines to each financial institution and obtain a written confirmation from 
such financial institution that it has reviewed and understands such guidelines. 

ARTICLES 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

The investment, per this policy, of Authority idle monies is annually delegated to the 
Director of Finance by the Members who shall thereafter assume full responsibility for those 
transactions until the delegation of authority is revoked or expires. The Director of Finance may 
delegate the day-to-day operations of investing to his/her designee(s), but not the responsibility 
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for the overall investment program. The Director of Finance will review all investment 
transactions on a regular basis to assure compliance with this Statement of Investment Policy. 

ARTICLE9 
ETHICS AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 
business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which 
could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Such persons shall disclose 
any material financial interest in financial institutions that conduct business with this jurisdiction, 
and they shall further disclose any large personal financial/investment positions that could be 
related to the performance of the Authority's portfolio. All officers and employees involved in 
the investment of public funds are required to comply with the Authority's Conflict of Interest 
Policy. 

ARTICLE 10 

INELIGIBLE INVESTMENTS 

The Authority shall invest only in the types of investments specifically described herein. 
All other investments are prohibited from use in this portfolio, including but not limited to 
common stocks, futures and the writing of options. The use of short positions is also prohibited. 

ARTICLE 11 
DERIVATIVES 

A derivative is defined as a financial instrument that derives its cash flows, and therefore 
its value, by reference to an underlying instrument, index or reference rate. The purchase of 
yield curve notes, interest only, principal only, range notes, and inverse floaters are prohibited 
(this list is not intended to cover all types of securities and is presented as an example of the 
types of securities that should be avoided). Callable bonds, step-up bonds, and floating rate 
securities (with a positive spread) are permitted investments. No security will be purchased that 
could result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity. 

ARTICLE 12 
SWAPS 

A swap is a shift of assets from one instrument to another and may be done for a variety 
of reasons, such as to increase yield, lengthen or shorten maturities, or to increase investment 
quality. In no instance shall a swap be used for speculative purposes. Any such swap shall be 
simultaneous ( same day execution of sale and purchase), and requires the written approval of the 
Director of Finance. 

ARTICLE 13 

INTERNAL CONTROLS 

Pursuant to other provisions of the New York Public Authorities Law, a system of 
internal controls shall be established and documented in writing. The controls shall be designed 
to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, employee error, and misrepresentation of 
third parties, unanticipated changes in financial markets or imprudent action by employees and 
officers of the Authority. Controls deemed most important include: control of collusion, 
separation of duties and administrative controls, separation of transaction authority from 
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accounting and recordkeeping, separation of custodial safekeeping from transaction authority, 
accounting, and recordkeeping, clear delegation of authority, management review and approval 
of investment transactions, specific limitations regarding securities losses and remedial action, 
written confirmation of telephone transactions, minimizing the number of authorized investment 
officials, documentation of transactions and strategies, and code of ethics standards. The 
Director of Finance will establish an annual process of independent review by an external audit 
firm. This review will provide assurances of strong internal controls by reviewing compliance 
with previously established policies and procedures. 

ARTICLE 14 
REPORTING 

The Director of Finance will submit a quarterly investment report to the Members and the 
Executive Director. This report will include: a list of portfolio transactions, type of investment, 
issuer, date of maturity, amount of deposit/par amount, current market value of all securities 
(with the source of the market valuation), rate of interest, and a statement indicating compliance 
or noncompliance with this Statement of Investment Policy. As applicable and appropriate based 
on the type of investment, additional items listed will also include average weighted yield, 
average days to maturity, accrued interest earned during the period and fiscal year to date, 
percent distribution to each type of investment and any funds under management by contracted 
parties, including lending programs. The report will include a list of auditors, investment 
bankers, brokers, agents, dealers and advisers, as applicable. 

The Director of Finance will submit an annual investment report to the Members and the 
Executive Director. In addition to the information set forth in the preceding paragraph, the 
annual report will contain a yearly update regarding the Authority's investment guidelines, 
amendments to such guidelines, if any, the results of the annual independent investment audit, 
the investment performance record of the Authority, and a list of the total fees, commissions and 
other charges paid to each investment banker, broker, agent, dealer and adviser rendering 
investment-related services to the Authority. The annual investment report shall be prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles for governments (GAAP) and shall 
comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 3. In addition, 
GASB Statement No. 28 and GASB Statement No.31 shall be applied as appropriate. 

The Authority shall submit its annual investment report to the Division of the Budget 
with copies to the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the County of Monroe, the 
Department of Audit and Control of the State ofNew York, the Senate Finance Committee, and 
the Assembly Ways and Means Committee. 

Copies of the Authority's annual investment report shall be made available to the public 
upon reasonable request therefor. 

ARTICLE 15 
QUALIFIED BANKS AND SECURITIES DEALERS 

The Authority shall conduct business only with banks, agents and registered investment 
securities brokers and dealers. The Authority's staff will investigate all institutions that wish to 
conduct business with the Authority and evaluate their quality, reliability, experience, 
capitalization, size and any other relevant information. All institutions must sign an information 
request form, and agree to abide by the conditions set forth in this Investment Policy. The 
Director of Finance shall maintain a list of approved institutions and security broker/dealers. 
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This will be done annually by having the financial institutions complete and return an 
information request form, and an audited financial statement within 90 days of the institution's 
fiscal year-end. In the event the primary dealer rejects the language in the dealer information 
request form, the Director of Finance may return to the Authority's Board for approval of 
alternative language proposed by the primary dealer. 

ARTICLE 16 
RISK TOLERANCE 

The Authority recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults, market 
price changes or various technical complications leading to temporary illiquidity. Portfolio 
diversification is employed as a way to control risk. The Director of Finance is expected to 
display prudence in the selection of securities, as a way to minimize default risk. No individual 
investment transaction shall be undertaken which jeopardizes the total capital position of the 
overall portfolio. The Director of Finance shall periodically establish guidelines and strategies to 
control risks of default, market price changes and illiquidity. 

As described herein, the Indenture permits the use of various types of investments. Funds 
invested pursuant to the Indenture include short-term funds for operating needs as well as longer­
term funds for capital needs. The Authority shall manage market and interest rate risk within 
each category of investments by investing to a shorter term. The Authority shall also seek to 
avoid trading losses (for speculative purposes) unless there is a sudden need for liquidity and the 
need cannot be satisfied on a more cost effective basis. 

Controlling and managing risk is the foremost portfolio management objective. The 
Authority strives to maintain an efficient portfolio by providing for the lowest level of risk for a 
given level of return. 

In addition to these general policy considerations, the following specific policies will be 
strictly observed: 

A. All transactions will be executed on a delivery-versus-payment basis. 

B. A competitive bid process, when practical, will be used to place all 
investment purchases and sell transactions. 

ARTICLE 17 

DIVERSIFICATION 

In order to avoid incurring unreasonable and avoidable risks regarding specific security 
types or individual financial institutions, the Director of Finance shall diversify the investment 
portfolio by security type, institution and maturity. In particular, the Authority shall limit its 
investments at any financial institution to 1 % of such institution's assets. 

ARTICLE 18 
STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY 

This Statement of Investment Policy shall be reviewed and submitted annually to the 
Members in order to incorporate any changes necessary to ensure consistency and its relevance 
to current law, and financial and economic trends. Such review and approval shall occur each 
year at the Authority's Annual Meeting. 
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Exhibit A 

Included below is the definition of "Authorized Investments" and the list of permitted 
investments per section 101 of the Trust Indenture dated as of October 1, 1991. 

Items (i)-(iii) below apply to the investment of funds held in the Bond Fund. 

All other funds held under the Trust Indenture may be invested in any of the categories of 
authorized investments. 

"Authorized Investments" means any of the following, if and to the extent that the same are legal 
for the investment of funds of the Authority or the Trustee, as applicable: 

(i) direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are 
unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America; 

(ii) bonds, debentures, notes, participation certificates or other evidences of indebtedness 
issued or guaranteed by Bank for Cooperatives; Federal Intermediate Credit Bank; 
Federal Home Loan Bank System; Export-Import Bank of the United States; Federal 
Land Banks; Federal National Mortgage Association; United States Postal Service; 
Government National Mortgage Association, Federal Financing Bank, Farmers Home 
Administration, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association or any agency or 
instrumentality of the United States of America or any other corporation wholly-owned 
by the United States of America; 

(iii) New Housing Authority Bonds issued by public agencies or municipalities and fully 
secured as to the payment of both principal and interest by a pledge of annual 
contributions under an annual contributions contract or contracts with the United States 
of America or any agency thereof; or notes issued by public agencies or municipalities 
and fully secured as to the payment of both principal and interest by a requisition, 
guarantee or payment agreement with the United States of America or any agency 
thereof; 

(iv) direct and general obligations, to the payment of the principal of and interest on which 
the full faith and credit of the issuer is pledged, of any of the following: any state of the 
United States, or any political subdivision of any such state; provided that (a) as to such 
obligations of a political subdivision, all the taxable real property within such political 
subdivision shall be subject to taxation thereby to pay such obligations and the interest 
thereon, without limitation as to rate or amount, or the revenues of such political 
subdivision shall be pledged to pay such obligations and the interest thereon and (b) at 
the time of their purchase under this Indenture, such obligations of any such state or 
political subdivision are rated in either of the two highest rating categories by two 
nationally recognized bond rating agencies; 

(v) bank time deposits evidenced by certificates of deposit and bankers acceptances issued 
by any bank or trust company (which may include the Trustee or any Construction 
Fund Custodian) which is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and 
which has capital stock, surplus and undivided profits aggregating in excess of fifty 
million dollars ($50,000,000), provided that such time deposits and bankers' 
acceptances (a) do not exceed at any one time in the aggregate five percent (5%) of the 
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total of the capital and surplus of such bank or trust company, or (b) are secured by 
obligations described in items (i), (ii), or (iii) of this definition or are insured by a 
nationally recognized insurance company which has issued municipal bond insurance 
policies insuring the payment or which are rated, because of such insurance, in either of 
the two highest rating categories by two nationally recognized bond rating agencies, 
which such obligations at all time have a market value (exclusive of accrued interest) at 
least equal to such time deposits so secured; 

(vi) repurchase agreements collateralized by obligation described in items (i), (ii) or (iii) of 
this definition with any registered broker/dealer subject to Securities Investors' 
Protection Corporation jurisdiction, which has an uninsured, unsecured and 
unguaranteed obligation rated "Prime-1" or "A3" or better by Moody's Investors 
Services, Inc. and "A-1" or "A" or better by Standard & Poor's Corporation, or any 
commercial bank with the above ratings, provided 

(a) a master repurchase agreement or specific written repurchase agreement 
governs the transaction, 

(b) the securities are held free and clear of any lien by the Trustee or an 
independent third party acting solely as agent for the Trustee, and such third 
party is (i) a Federal Reserve Bank, or (ii) a bank which is a member of the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has combined capital, surplus 
and undivided profits of not less than $25,000,000 and the Trustee shall have 
received written confirmation from such third party that it holds such securities, 
free and clear of any lien, as agent for the Trustee, 

(c) a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code, or book 
entry procedures prescribed as 31 CFR 306.1 et seq. or 31 CFR 350.0 et seq. (or 
similar successor provision oflaw) in such securities is created for the benefit of 
the Trustee, 

(d) the repurchase agreement has a term of 30 days or less, or the Trustee will value 
the collateral securities no less frequently than monthly and will liquidate the 
collateral securities if any deficiency in the required collateral percentage is not 
restored within the two business days of such valuation, 

( e) the repurchase agreement matures at least ten days ( or other appropriate 
liquidation period) prior to the date when liquidation is required, and 

(f) the fair market value of the securities in relation to the amount of the repurchase 
obligation is equal to at least 100%. 

(vii) obligations consisting of notes, bonds and debentures which are direct obligations of a 
solvent corporation existing under the laws of the United States or any state thereof, 
provided that such investments shall be rated in one of the two highest long-term rating 
categories established by at least two nationally recognized bond rating agencies; 

(viii) certificates or other obligations that evidence ownership of the right of payments of 
principal of or interest on obligations of the United States of America or any state of the 
United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or any agency or 
instrumentality of the United States of America or any state or political subdivision 
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provided that such obligations shall be held in trust by a bank or trust company or a 
national banking association meeting the requirements for a Trustee under Section 801 
hereof, and provided further that, in the case of certificates or other obligations of a 
state or political subdivision, the payments of all principal of and interest on such 
certificates or such obligations shall be fully insured or unconditionally guaranteed by, 
or otherwise unconditionally payable pursuant to a credit support arrangement provided 
by, one or more financial institutions or insurance companies or associations which 
shall be rated in the highest rating category by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and 
Standard & Poor's Corporation, or, in the case of an insurer providing municipal bond 
insurance policies insuring the payment, when due, of the principal of an interest on 
municipal bonds, such insurance policy shall result in such municipal bonds being rated 
in the highest rating category by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor's 
Corporation; 

(ix) investment agreements rated or the issuer of which is rated, in the highest short-term or 
one of the two highest long term rating categories by at least two nationally recognized 
rating agencies; 

(x) money market funds rated in the highest short term or long term rating category by at 
least one nationally recognized rating agency; and 

(xi) with respect to investments made by the Authority, and other investments which are 
permitted under the laws of the State of New York. 
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~ Monroe County Water Authority 
Memorandum 

To: 
From: 

February 24, 2026 
Nicholas Nace, Executive Director /Ji,.,/\ 

Subject: 
Amy Molinari, Director of Finance & Business Services tJ.{ Y ~ 
Annual Assessment of the Effectiveness of MCWA Internal Controls and Risks 

Annually a number of Authority functions are reviewed to assess potential risks to Authority operations and 
assets. This assessment includes both a review of Authority documents and employee interviews to 
evaluate compliance with the Authority's policies and procedures. An additional component of this 
assessment is a review of the Water Authority's compliance with the reporting requirements established by 
the New York State Authority Budget Office. The 2025 assessment confirmed that the Authority's policies 
and procedures are being followed and that the Authority has complied with Authority Budget Office 
reporting requirements. 

The Authority completed an internal control assessment of processes and procedures performed by the 
Authority's staff. The 2025 assessment included the review of the following: procurement procedures, 
accounts payable procedures, payroll procedures including a review of random weeks of payroll records to 
insure accurate charging of hours worked as well as time off hours, ABO website content requirements, and 
credit card usage. 

Six members of the Authority's senior staff, four staff, and two board members were interviewed as part of 
a risk assessment process. The interviews covered a wide range of topics to assess employee knowledge, 
compliance with Authority policies and procedures, employee access to safety and job-related training, 
stimulate thought processes regarding risks the Authority may face and to identify potential internal and 
external risks to the Water Authority. 

Consistent with past years reviews it is concluded that: 
• Key Water Authority assets are protected by extensive security systems and inspection protocols 
• Cross checks manually monitor the purchasing and inventorying of procured items 
• The Water Authority is in compliance with the requirements of the NYS Authority Budget Office 

and maintains transparency of its operations through its web site 
• No material weakness of the Authority's financial procedures was identified by the most recent 

external audit of the Authority's financial transactions 

As observed in past assessments, Authority employees remain committed to delivering the highest level of 
services to the Authority's customers. 

While no assessment of compliance with current policies and procedures can guarantee the absence of any 
risk to Authority operations, the 2025 assessment found that the Authority has sufficient controls within 
the parameters of its current IT systems and software, and did not detect discrepancies to its internal 
controls that would compromise the financial or operational integrity of the Authority. 



MISSION STATEMENT 

RE-ADOPTED MARCH, 2025 2026 

 

The Monroe County Water Authority is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation that reliably 
provides quality, affordable water that fosters economic vitality and enhanced quality of life for 
Monroe County and area communities who request service. 

---
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REPORT ON 2025 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS 

 
The Monroe County Water Authority (Authority) evaluated and monitored the following goals and 
global performance measurements to assess our effectiveness in meeting our mission. 
 
The reliability component of our mission was evaluated by the following: 

• Continuity of production capacity is paramount. Unplanned outages from treatment plants 
and pumping stations are tracked by the number of events and duration of events.  As each 
of these facilities is unique and will have a varying level of severity of impact, each outage 
event of greater than four hours is assessed and, if necessary, an action plan to minimize 
impacts is developed. 
 
 Results for 2025: There were no unplanned outages of supply capacity lasting more 

than four hours. Outages of specific treatment components, tanks, pumps, and water 
mains were either planned in advance or did not lead to a significant reduction in 
capacity. The Authority’s treatment, distribution, and storage systems have been 
designed with redundancy and flexibility so that individual components may be 
temporarily taken out of service while maintaining the Authority’s ability to meet 
customer demands.   

 
• Distribution system reliability is measured by an assessment of the combined number of 

leaks and main breaks per 100 miles of water main as benchmarked against the most recent 
American Water Works Association (AWWA) Benchmarking Report. Our goal is to achieve 
a benchmark that is better than the national median value. 
 
 Results for 2025:  The AWWA benchmark to meet the system integrity goal is to be less 

than 16.4 combined leaks and main breaks per 100 miles of water main per year, which 
is the national median value for systems serving more than 500,000 people per their 
2025 Benchmarking Report. Our distribution system includes approximately 3,492 miles 
of water main. In 2025 the combined number of leaks and main breaks repaired was 895 
yielding a system integrity rating of 25.6, which is greater than AWWA’s national 
median value, but still within the interquartile range between the 25th and 75th 
percentiles. The system integrity rating is an approximate 50% increase from 2024, 
which is likely due, in part, to the significantly colder than normal weather experienced 
in late 2025. 

 
• Maintaining the long-term reliability of our infrastructure requires a planned reinvestment in 

its renewal. Our goal is to implement a budget that reinvests a minimum of 2% of annual 
revenues in the renewal and replacement of our infrastructure. 
 
 Results for 2025:  The Authority’s 2025 budget for infrastructure related renewal and 

replacement reinvestment was as follows: 
 Production & Transmission:    $    6,075,000 
 Engineering:      $  11,640,000 
 Facilities Fleet Operations:   $    5,395,900 
 Finance & Business Services   $    3,668,407 
 Total                $   26,779,307 

 
Monroe County Water Authority  

,., 
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Although most projects in the budget were either initiated or completed in 2025, some 
were delayed due to adjustments in priorities or to accommodate scheduling issues. It is 
anticipated that these will be initiated and/or completed in 2026. This reinvestment in 
infrastructure replacement was significantly greater than the goal amount. 
 

The quality aspect of our mission was evaluated by: 
• Our goal is to produce and deliver water that meets or exceeds the requirements of state and 

federal water quality regulations. This is measured by compliance with each regulated 
parameter and is reported to the Board, and our customers, in an annual Water Quality 
Report. 
 
 Results for 2025:  In early 2025, the New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) 

and US Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) completed an administrative review 
of the Authority’s compliance with the Lead and Copper Rule. Their review concluded 
that in 1998, NYSDOH incorrectly approved the Authority’s system designation as being 
optimized for corrosion control. As a result, NYSDOH revoked their previous approval 
and issued the Authority a treatment technique violation of the New York State Sanitary 
Code for failure to have optimal corrosion control treatment in place. Nothing changed 
with regard to water quality or lead levels in the samples we collect as a result of this 
treatment technique violation. The Authority operated under the approval granted by 
NYSDOH since 1998 and never exceeded the lead Action Level of 15 parts per billion 
(ppb) since the Lead and Copper Rule was established in 1991. 
 
Additionally, the Authority, in conjunction with the City of Rochester, proactively began 
a comprehensive corrosion control treatment study in 2022 in anticipation of the Lead 
and Copper Rule Improvements that were released in October 2024. Completion of this 
study is anticipated the third quarter of 2026. Once the results of the study are approved 
by the NYSDOH, the recommended corrosion control technology will be implemented 
into our treatment process, which will bring us back into compliance. 

 
Notwithstanding this treatment technique violation, all of the Authority’s produced and 
delivered water supplies were in full compliance with NYSDOH and USEPA regulatory 
requirements. Our Annual Water Quality Report reflecting this achievement, along with 
information about the treatment technique violation, will be made available to our 
customers on the MCWA.com website or delivered to customers in accordance with the 
revised USEPA regulations regarding the Consumer Confidence Report requirements. 

 
• Our Customer Service Information System includes tracking mechanisms for categorizing 

and measuring the number of customer calls and inquiries that are specific to quality. Trends 
and specific events are analyzed and, if necessary, action plans are to be implemented. 
 
 Results for 2025:  The Authority received approximately 332 quality related calls and 

inquiries from customers in 2025 or approximately 1.7 calls per thousand customers, 
which is an approximate 18% decrease from 2024. The Shoremont Water Treatment 
Plant Laboratory handled 190 of these calls and inquiries. The overall trend in calls per 
thousand customers remains downward. 
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Since 2016, customer inquiries specifically related to lead have been tracked separately 
and are not included in the water quality inquiry results presented above. The Authority 
received approximately 416 lead related calls and inquiries from customers in 2025 or 
approximately 2.2 calls per thousand customers, which is an approximate 70% decrease 
from 2024. 

 
The affordable component of our mission was judged in relation to: 

• Our goal is to achieve a better than average cost of service for a typical residential customer 
as benchmarked against our peer group of New York State water purveyors. 
 
 Results for 2025:  The analysis of the rates charged for a typical residential customer 

for our peer group is presented below. The Authority ranks just outside the lower 
quartile, significantly better than the 2025 goal. 
 

WATER QUALITY INQUIRIES I 1992 - 2025 
per 1,000 Customers 

25 --Inquiries per 1,000 customers 
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Comparison of January 2026 Water Charges1, 2, 3 

(All amounts in $) 
 Annual 

Fixed 
Charge 

Annual 
Consumption-
Based Charge 

Annual 
Minimum 
Charge 

Annual 
Total 
Charge 

City of Syracuse 0 315 175 315 
City of Binghamton 51 315 156 366 
City of Watertown 0 376 172 376 
Albany Water Board 0 378 161 378 
Suffolk County Water Authority 217 175 217 392 
Monroe County Water Authority 106 307 106 413 
City of Rochester 125 301 125 426 
Niagara Falls Water Board 15 444 247 458 
New York City 0 473 179 473 
Western Nassau Water Authority 0 477 272 477 
City of Yonkers 257 223 257 480 
Onondaga County Water Authority 194 328 194 522 
Erie County Water Authority 334 189 334 523 
Elmira Water Board 0 529 203 529 
City of Poughkeepsie 11 556 177 567 
Buffalo Water Board 314 272 314 585 
Mohawk Valley Water Authority 164 432 343 596 

Average 105 358 214 463 

Notes     
1 Charges are based on rates in effect in January 2026. 
2 Charges assume a single family residential customer using a 5/8" meter and 70,000 gallons of water 

per year. 
3 Minimum charges include fixed charges. 
 

 
• The ratings on our bonds affect the cost of capital to our customers and also provide an 

outside perspective and analysis of the overall financial health of the Water Authority.  Our 
goal is to maintain a double A rating or better from the rating agencies.  
 
 Results for 2025: Our Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s ratings are listed below. These 

were reviewed and assigned by both agencies in March 2020 with the issuance of the 
Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2020.  
 
 Standard and Poor’s: AA+ 
 Moody’s: Aa1 

 
The measure of our water supply fostering economic vitality was judged by:  

• Our goal is to produce and deliver water in a manner that meets both our residential and our 
commercial/industrial customer’s needs; to both retain current users and attract those 
looking to locate in our service area. 

 
 Results for 2025:  Presented below is a summary of new service inquiries:   

  
 51 new Industrial/Commercial customer applications 
 697 new 1-inch residential water services: 
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o 409 from new residential subdivisions (developer main extensions); 
o 167 from water districts; 
o 20 from secondary source change-overs; 
o 99 from new construction; and 
o 2 from converting existing municipal accounts identified by the 

Engineering Department’s Mapping Group. 
 
The response to requests for service received from area communities’ component of our mission 
was measured by: 

• Requests for service can be accurately measured by reporting and tabulating contacts from 
local communities. Internal procedures require all such contacts of this nature be directed to 
the Executive Director, who will annually report all such requests and the status thereof to 
the Board. 
 
 Results for 2025:  Presented below is a summary of contacts from existing communities 

for lease renewals, contacts made by water purveyors that are presently un-served, or 
communities looking to upgrade service from wholesale to retail:  

 
 The Board executed a new wholesale agreement with the Sea Breeze Water 

District for a new forty year term. The original agreement from 1984 expired and 
an inquiry was made to the Executive Director by the Superintendent of the Sea 
Breeze Water District to execute a new wholesale agreement. 
 

 The Village of Hilton Mayor contacted the Executive Director about upgrading 
the existing wholesale agreement to a full retail lease agreement. The existing 
agreement expired in December 2025 and was for wholesale supply of water to 
the Village for distribution and included the lease and operation of the Village’s 
water storage tank and parts of the Village distribution system outside of the 
territorial limits of the Village. 
 

 The Supervisor of the Town of Murray, Orleans County reached out to the 
Executive Director to inquire as to the level of service the Authority could 
provide to the Town. Currently the Authority does not have an agreement with 
the Town of Murray; however, the Town does purchase some water from the 
Authority on a Supplemental Supply basis. The Town also purchases some of its 
water supply from the Village of Albion. The Authority’s Engineering and 
Production Departments are currently reviewing the existing Murray water 
system and related hydraulics to determine what services the Authority can 
provide to the Town.  
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PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS FOR 2026 
 
The Monroe County Water Authority will evaluate and monitor the following goals and global 
performance measurements to assess our effectiveness in meeting our mission. 
 
The reliability component of our mission will be evaluated by the following: 

• Continuity of production capacity is paramount. Unplanned outages from treatment 
plants and pumping stations are tracked by the number of events and duration of events. 
As each of these facilities is unique and will have a varying level of severity of impact, 
each outage event of greater than four hours is assessed and, if necessary, an action plan 
to minimize impacts is to be developed. 

• Distribution system reliability is measured by an assessment of the number of main 
breaks per mile of water main as benchmarked against the most recent American Water 
Works Association Benchmarking Report. Our goal is to achieve a benchmark that is 
better than the national average ratio. 

• Maintaining the long-term reliability of our infrastructure requires a planned reinvestment 
in its renewal. Our goal is to implement a budget that reinvests a minimum of 2% of 
annual revenues in the renewal and replacement of our infrastructure. 

 
The quality aspect of our mission will be evaluated by: 

• Our goal is to produce and deliver water that meets or exceeds the requirements of state 
and federal water quality regulations. This is measured by compliance with each 
regulated parameter and is reported to the Board, and our customers, in an annual Water 
Quality Report. 

• Our Customer Service Information System includes tracking mechanisms for 
categorizing and measuring the number of customer calls and inquiries that are specific to 
quality.  Trends and specific events are analyzed and, if necessary, action plans are to be 
implemented. 

 
The affordable component of our mission will be judged in relation to: 

• Our goal is to achieve a better than average cost of service for a typical residential 
customer as benchmarked against our peer group of New York State water purveyors. 

• The ratings on our bonds affect the cost of capital to our customers and also provide an 
outside perspective and analysis of the overall financial health of the Water Authority.  
Our goal is to maintain a double A rating or better from the rating agencies.  

 
The measure of our water supply fostering economic vitality will be judged by:  

• The availability of a plentiful, high quality water supply can be a critical differentiator for 
attracting new businesses, and the associated economic benefits of new jobs, to our 
service area. Our goal is to produce and deliver water in a manner that meets our 
residential and our commercial/industrial customer’s needs; to both retain current users 
and attract those looking to locate in our service area.  New service inquiries are handled 
by our Engineering Department who will annually report a summary of such requests and 
their status to the Board. 
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The response to requests for service received from area communities component of our mission 
will be measured by: 

• Requests for service can be accurately measured by reporting and tabulating contacts 
from local communities. Internal procedures require all such contacts of this nature be 
directed to the Executive Director, who will annually report all such requests and the 
status thereof to the Board. 
 

 



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

This Memorandum of Agreement (the "Agreement") is made this_ day of March, 
2026, by and between the Monroe County Water Authority (the "Authority") and the Civil 
Service Employees Association, Inc., Local 1000 of AFSCME ("CSEA"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Authority and CSEA are parties to a collective bargaining agreement that 
covers the period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2027 (the "CBA"); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority and CSEA now wish to amend the CBA to make Juneteenth a 
designated holiday; 

Now, THEREFORE, the Authority and CSEA hereby agree as follows: 

1. Amendment of CBA. The Authority and CSEA agree to revise the language of 
Section 25.1 of the CBA to the following: 

25.1 Holidays: A full-time employee shall receive thirteen (13) holidays 
during each calendar year from 2026 through 2027. The holidays shall normally 
include: 

New Year's Day 
Presidents' Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 
Floating Holiday 

Martin Luther King Jr. Day 
Good Friday 
Veteran's Day 
Labor Day 
Day after Thanksgiving 
Juneteenth 

If New Year's Day, Independence Day, or Christmas Day fall on a Saturday or 
Sunday, the Employer may schedule Friday or Monday as the holiday or may 
substitute Indigenous Peoples Day. If Juneteenth falls on a Saturday or Sunday, 
the Employer will schedule Friday as the holiday. Employees and the Union will 
be notified of the holidays to be observed in a calendar year by November 1 of the 
preceding calendar year. 

2. No Precedent. The Authority and CSEA agree this Agreement shall not establish 
a precedent nor shall it in any way prejudice the rights of the Authority or the CSEA with regard 
to any other matter under the CBA or otherwise. However, notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
amendment of the CBA in Section 1 above is binding on the parties with respect to future 
applications of Section 25 .1 of the CBA. 
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3. Complete Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement and 
understanding between the Authority and CSEA and merges and supersedes all prior discussions, 
agreements, arrangements and understandings of every kind and nature, written or oral, 
regarding the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be amended or modified except by 
a writing signed by the Authority and the CSEA. 

4. Headings. The headings of the paragraphs and sections in this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not affect its construction. 

5. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed by the parties in counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

6. Authority. The signatories to this Agreement hereby represent that they are fully 
authorized to enter into this Agreement and bind the Parties hereto, including all CSEA 
members, to the terms and conditions hereof. The CSEA signatory represents and warrants that 
he/she has taken all steps, including obtaining ratification if necessary and/or required by CSEA 
bylaws and policies, to obtain the necessary authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of 
the CSEA and its members. The Authority signatory represents and warrants the Monroe 
County Water Authority Board of Directors approved this Agreement prior to its execution. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date above 
first written. 

CSEA LOCAL 1000, UNIT 7405 

Michael Irving 
Unit President 

MONROE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

Nicholas A. Noce 
Executive Director 
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